
CURRY COUNTY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

94235 Moore Street 

Gold Beach, Oregon 

(541) 247-3296 

BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us 

www.co.curry.or.us 

 

 

AGENDA 
BOC BUSINESS MEETING 

March 21, 2024 

4:00 p.m. 
 

Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. AMENDMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

3. GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENTS  

To make a public comment, please submit a Speaker’s Slip to the Chair prior to the start of the 

meeting, or email public comments during the meeting to BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us. Public 

comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker. If a public comment is regarding a specific 

agenda item, the speaker will be called upon the arrival of that agenda item.  

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approve Minutes for Business Meeting on March 6, 2024 (Pg. 1) 

B. Approve Host Contract – Boice-Cope Park (Pg. 4) 

C. Approve Hire – Plumbing Inspector (Pg. 10) 

D. Approve Renewal of AirMedCare Payroll Deduction Agreement (Pg. 15)  

E. Approve Vac-Con Jet Rodder Repair (Pg. 26) 

F. Approve Contract with Tidewater Contractors – Chip Seal Aggregate (Pg. 34) 

G. Approve Contract with Albina Asphalt – Chip Seal Oil (Pg. 46) 

 

 

5. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

A. FY24 Budget Revision Resolution (Pg. 60) 

*Public Comments* 

i. Resolution (Pg. 61) 

B. Curry County Building Code Revision (Pg. 79) 

*Public Comments* 

i. Ordinance (Pg. 80) 

C. Curry Transfer and Recycling Rate Increase (Pg. 105) 

*Public Comments* 

i. CTR Packet (Pg. 106) 

 

 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us
http://www.co.curry.or.us/
mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


 

Meetings are recorded and will be available on YouTube – Curry County Civic TV.  

To make a public comment, please submit a Speaker’s Slip to the Chair prior to the start of the meeting, 

or email public comments during the meeting to BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us. 

Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48-hour advance notification. 

 

 

D. Curry County Social Media Policy (Pg. 111) 

*Public Comments* 

i. Order (Pg. 112) 

ii. Policy (Pg. 113) 

 

6. ELECTED OFFICIAL UPDATES 

7. COMMISSIONER UPDATES 

A. Commissioner Herzog 

B. Commissioner Trost 

C. Commissioner Alcorn 

 

8. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. 192.660(2)() 

 

9. OTHER   

ORS 192.640(1) provides that “… notice shall include a list of the principal subjects 

anticipated to be considered at the meeting, but this requirement shall not limit the ability 

of a governing body to consider additional subjects.” 

 

10. ADJOURN 
 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


  CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
Commissioners’ Hearing Room, Courthouse Annex 

94235 Moore Street, Gold Beach, Oregon 

www.co.curry.or.us 

BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES 

March 6, 2024 

Please note: For detailed information on any agenda item refer to Audio/Video. 
. 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The meeting was called to order 6:00 p.m.; present were Chair Brad Alcorn, Vice Chair John

Herzog, and Commissioner Jay Trost

Staff present: Director of County Operations and County Counsel Ted Fitzgerald, Sheriff John

Ward, Public Information Officer Val Early, and County Counsel Assistant Rabiah Lee.

The Pledge was recited by all.

2. AMENDMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Trost would like to add Discussion Item 5-C – Banana Belt Clean Up

Fitzgerald would like to add 5-D – Red Cross Resolution

Fitzgerald would like to add 4-F – Modification of CRO Job Description

Trost motioned to approve the agenda as amended. Herzog seconded. Motion carried

unanimously.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Dave Barnes – Complaint about Jerry’s Flat Road.

Patrick Hollinger – Provided information on Southern Oregon Coast Legends Festival hosted

by the Gold Beach Main Street.

Lauri Vanzant – Provided information on Southern Oregon Coast Legends Festival hosted by

the Gold Beach Main Street.

Jeanette Peterson – Expressed opinion and inquired on proposed Sheriff Levy.

4. CONSENT AGENDA

A. Approve Minutes for Business Meeting on February 22, 2024

B. Reclassification of Employee (PIO/Grant Manager)

C. Approve Position Description – Fairgrounds & Event Center Manager

D. Approve Position Description – Economic Development Assistant

E. Approve Promotion of B. Nelson – Appraiser I

F. Modification of CRO Job Description

1

http://www.co.curry.or.us/


Trost motioned to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. Herzog seconded. Motion 

carried unanimously. 

5. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

A. Proposal for Land Trade with Private Party – Fitzgerald presented.

Herzog motioned to instruct County Legal Counsel to proceed with the land trade, 

including any statutorily required processes and subject to the above conditions. Trost 

seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

B. Ordinance Adopting a Division of County Code – Fitzgerald presented.

Herzog motioned to approve the proposed Ordinance adopting Article One, Division 

Nineteen of Curry County Code. Trost seconded. Motion carried unanimously. 

C. Banana Belt Clean Up – Trost presented.

Citizen provided pictures and information of recent clean-up on North Bank of the Chetco.

Commissioners thanked all volunteers on this project and stated that the effort is

inspirational. Commissioner Trost would like to future discuss opportunities on prevention

for situations that required this amount of cleaning.

D. Red Cross Resolution – Alcorn presented.

Alcorn motioned to approve a Resolution proclaiming March 2024 as Red Cross Month. 

Herzog seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  

6. ELECTED OFFICIAL UPDATES

Sheriff Ward – Expressed gratification on the Banana Belt Clean Up. Sheriff Ward also stated

that he is completely in support of the levy that will be on the May Ballot. Ward explained that

not only will it provide 24/7 Sheriff Patrol, but it will also assist with recruiting and retaining

Deputies.

Treasurer Barnes – Expressed support for the upcoming levy.

7. COMMISSIONER UPDATES

Herzog – Stated that he is proud of the community this week coming together for the Banana

Belt Clean Up.

Trost – Concurred with Herzog’s statement. Trost mentioned looking at our current Ordinances

regarding penalties on items such as littering, etc. Would like to look at if they are up to date

with current statutes and language.

Alcorn –  Provided information on the levy questions that he has been receiving. Stated that a

website with FAQ’s will be going live soon. The Commissioners will be travelling to the

different City Council Meetings and conducting Town Halls in all regions of the County as

well.

2



 

8.   OTHER  (ORS 192.640(1) “… notice shall include a list of the principal subjects 

anticipated to be considered at the meeting, but this requirement shall not limit the ability of 

a governing body to consider additional subjects.”) 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

Chair Alcorn adjourned the meeting at 7:33 p.m. 

 

Dated this 21st day of March, 2024 

 

 

 

______________________         ______________________ ______________________  

Brad Alcorn, Chair       John Herzog, Vice Chair  Jay Trost, Commissioner  

 

Minutes prepared by Natasha Tippetts, Administrative Assistant 

3



 
 

 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REQUEST FOR AGENDA ITEM  
BUSINESS MEETING 
 

Agenda Date: Agenda Item Title: 

March 21st 2024  Boice-Cope Park Host Contract      

        Time Needed: 

     

Financial Impact: Description and Background: 

      Attached is a Contract with Leslie Newman for a park host at Boice-Cope 

Park.          

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

Category: 

☐            Action/Discussion 

☒                             Consent 

☐            Executive Session 

☐                         Hire Order 

☐                     Presentation 

Requested Motion: 
 

Approve 6-month Contract with Leslie Newman as Park Host for Boice-Cope County Park starting April 1, 2024  

Attachments: Instructions Once Approved: 

1. Park Host Volunteer Agreement  

2.       

3.       

4.       

5.        

         

         

         

         

          

Contact Person – Name and Department: Date Submitted: 

Charles Buchanan    3/13/2024 

 

4



PARK HOST VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT 

BOICE - COPE COUNTY PARK I CONTRACT NO. __ _ 

This Agreement is entered into this 1st day of April 2024, by and between Cuny County, a Political 
Subdivision of the State of Oregon (County) and Leslie Newman (Host) as follows: 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the County has a need for volunteers to serve as Park Host for Boice-Cope Park (hereinafter "County 

Park") to watch and provide security for the property, to call for assistance, when necessary, to coordinate 

activities with Parks Management, and to perfonn other services as necessary; and 

WHEREAS, the County has a campsite space available for the Host to use ("Host Campsite"); and, 

WHEREAS, the County is willing to allow the use of the campsite by the Host, rent and utility free, to provide 
them with a small stipend of $500.00 per month, and to assist the Host in the performance of their voluntary 
services for the term of this agreement. 

The County and Host agree to the following provisions: 

1. ADMINISTRATION OF THIS AGREEMENT AND CHAIN OF COMMAND

1.1 The Parks Management shall administer this agreement and recommend to the Board of

Commissioners termination or renewal of this agreement. The Parks Management is the sole administrator
of this contract.

1.2 If the Park Host has a complaint about the Parks Management, they are to contact the Board of

Commissioners Parks Liaison.

2. DESCRIPTION OF FUNCTIONS AND SERVICES

2.1 Host shall voluntarily perform the functions and services described in Exhibit "A" that is attached to
this agreement and such other services as authorized by Parks Management. County reserves the right to

modify the Host duties and service to the County as necessary for the efficient operation of the designated

County Park.

2.2 The Host understands that they are donating their hours of service to the County and that this is done

without any promise or expectation of compensation for services rendered. The Host will not receive any

compensation for services perfonned under this agreement. The Host is not eligible to receive
unemployment benefits, social security, health insurance, or any other benefits that are provided to paid

employees of the County, with the exception of worker's compensation coverage that the County provides

to volunteers. The provision of a Host Campsite, no-cost utilities and a stipend by the County is not
compensation for service rendered b.t.�t rather a benefit and gratuity that the County freely chooses to
provide.

PARK HOST VOLUNTEER AGREE:MENT I PAGE 1 OF5

BOICE - COPE COUNTY PARK 
5



3. CAMPSITE, OCCUPANCY, PETS, UTILITIES AND STIPEND

3.1 As a gratuity to Host, County hereby allows Host the use of a space at the County Park for placement
of a recreational vehicle that is the residence of the Host. As a further gratuity, the County shall provide
water, electrical, sewer and garbage utilities in reasonable amounts for the Host.

3.l(a) The Host shall always maintain the Host Campsite and surrounding area in a clean and

sanitary condition. Items used for outdoor recreation are allowed outside, provided they are

maintained in an orderly fashion; any other personal items must be stored inside the Host's

recreational vehicle, mobile trailer, and/or personal vehicle(s). All personal vehicle(s), recreational
vehicle(s), and/or mobile trailer(s) that will be parked at the Camp Host Site must first be approved

by the Parks Management to ensure suitability for the Park.

3 .1 (b) County Park facilities are not to be used for storage of personal items of the Host. 

3.2 No more than two guests (Host and one other) will reside at the host site. Both the 

host and guest must submit to a background check. The Host is liable for the actions 

of any person who may at any time be residing therein. 

3.3 The Host shall vacate the Host Campsite and remove their residence (recreational 

vehicle) and personal property within five (5) days of the termination of this 
Agreement. 

3.4 The Host may not alter or improve the Host Campsite, the campground, or any 
County Park services without prior petmission from Parks Management or his/her 
designee. 

3.5 County employees or agents may inspect the County Park and Host Campsite at 

reasonable times. 

3.6 The Host shall be responsible for providing, at their own expense, any insurance 

coverage for their personal property to include their recreational vehicle, mobile 

trailer, and/or any personal vehicle(s). 

3. 7 Pets: All pets must be preapproved and have current vaccinations, County Licensed, 

and such must remain current dudng th.e term of this Agreement. Host sha11 always 
maintain control of the pet(s) and shall not allow the pet(s) to run at large. 

3. 7(a) If the Parks Management determines, in their sole discretion, that the Host's pet(s)

exhibit aggressive behavior, the Host shall be required to remove the pet from the County Park as
directed by the County.

3.8 Host will be compensated at the rate of fifty cents ($0.50) per mile for driving their 

personal vehicle for park business only when directed by the Parks Management or 
other County staff. 

3.9 Host shall not sublet any portion of the designated premises. 

3.10 Host shall not assign any duties designated by this Agreement to any other 

individual. 

PARK HOST VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT I PAGE 2 OF5

BOICE - COPE COUNTY PARK 
6



4. TIME COMMITMENT

4.1 One or more Hosts must be available when the County Park is open during the busy season of
May 15th through September 15th. Absences of all Hosts from the Park during these business hours must
be arranged with Parks Management prior to date of absence. During the offseason, the Host and Parks
Management will determine reasonable hours of coverage. Hosts and Parks Management will work to
maintain a schedule that typically allows five days on including weekends and holidays, with two
consecutive days off May 15th through September 15th.

4.2 Hosts shall notify the Parks Management of any anticipated absences from the County Park for more
than twenty-four (24) hours. Hosts must provide this notice in writing no later than five (5) days prior to
the anticipated absence.

4.3 When the Park Host is off site, he or she shall leave the tablet, all keys, change, cash, and any other
items necessary for park operations in the park Office for ease of access.

5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

5.1 This agreement shall be govemed by and subject to the laws of the State of Oregon. The parties shall
perform their duties in accordance with all applicable statutes, ordinances, regulations, and administrative
rules now or hereinafter in effect.

5.2 If any provision of this Agreement is held by a Court or administrative body to be invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be construed as if
the invalid provision had never been included.

5.3 The County may modify the terms of this Agreement by written notice to the Park Host as necessary
to comply with changes in federal and state statutes, regulations, administrative rules, and orders.

6. TERM AND TERMINATION

6.1 If the Park Host fails to perform any of the services and/or obligations of this Agreement or acts in any
such way that their behavior is reasonably deemed to be detrimental to the integrity, functionality, or safety
of the Parks Department, the County may tenninate this Agreement at its sole discretion upon twenty four
(24) hours written notice.

6.2 Either party may unilaterally terminate this Agreement with or without cause upon thirty (30) days 
prior written notice or such lesser written notice when dictated by emergency conditions. 

6.3 This agreement shall be effective April 1, 2024 - September 30, 2024, unless terminated 

pursuant to tl1e provisions of Sections 6.1 or 6.2. Agreements are for 6-month terms and can be renewed 
with both parties agreement. 

6.4 Termination shall not prejudice any right of the parties prior to the effective date of termination. 

PARK HOST VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT I PAGE 3 OF5

BOICE - COPE COUNTY PARK 7



7. MODIFICATIONS

Except as provided in Sections 2.1 and 5.3, this Agreement may be changed only by written modifications signed 
by both parties and may not be amended or modified by oral agreements or understandings between the parties. 

8. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement supersedes all prior and existing written or oral understandings between the parties. No other 

agreements, whether expressed or implied, shall be considered a part of this Agreement unless made in writing 

and executed by the parties hereto. 

CURRY COUNTY 

PARKS DEPARTMENT 

Dated: , 2024. 
---------- ------------------

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Ted Fitzgerald, OSB# 950738 
Curry County Legal Counsel 

Charles Buchanan

Curry County Parks Director 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Brad Alcorn, Chair 

John Herzog Vice Chair 

Jay Trost, Commissioner 

PARK HOST VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT I PAGE 4 OF5

BOICE - COPE COUNTY PARK 
8



Exhibit "A" 

SERVICES OF A VOLUNTEER PARK HOST-BOICE COPE 

The volunteer park host helps maintain and operate Boice Cope County Park, a part of the Curry County Park 

System. One or more Park hosts must be available all times when the park is open during the busy season of 

May 15th through September 15 th
, unless preauthorized by the Parks Management, or except in case of 

emergency. They must work and live in the campground near campers, have a sign identifying them as park 

hosts at their site. 

Perform Visitor services such as; 

1. Greet visitors and make them feel welcome and disseminate park rules.

2. Answer questions, receive comments, be readily accessible to the public.

3. Represent Curry County Parks, serving as a contact point for campers and travelers.

4. Notify Parks Management and/or Law Enforcement when emergencies arise.

5. Sell firewood.

6. Monitor host cell phone.

7. Evening rounds to check spaces, payment and needs.

Perform Reservation services such as; 

1. Assist visitors "with" reservations to locate their site.

2. Assist visitors "without" reservations to fmd an available space and register.

3. Input on-site reservation into the Parks Online Reservation System daily.

Perform Maintenance services such as; 

1. Check, clean and stock restrooms.

2. Keep the park clean of litter and trash.

3. Maintain a tidy host site.

4. Work on maintenance or service projects.

5. Mow, weed, landscape or garden.

6. Maintain a variety of equipment.

7. Assist Parks Management lo paint, build, and repair projects.

8. Advise Parks Management of issues, improvements or broken equipment.

9. Other duties agreed upon with Parks Management.

Volunteer Expectations: 

1. Hosts may sell only Curry County Parks approved items.

2. Hosts must get approval from Parks Management before adding any additional structures or storage
containers to the host site.

3. No vehicle maintenance at your site, consult with Parks Management on options.

4. No county equipment shall be used for personal benefit.

5. No use of alcohol, marijuana, or other non-prescribed drugs while on active duty.

6. Hosts are considered official "agents" of Curry County, therefore: please dress appropriately, avoid
offensive conduct and langu::igc.

PARK HOST VOLUNTEER AGREEMENT I PAGE 5 OF 5 

BOICE - COPE COUNTY PARK 
9



 
 

 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REQUEST FOR AGENDA ITEM  
BUSINESS MEETING 
 

Agenda Date: Agenda Item Title: 

March 21, 2024    Hire Order – Plumbing Inspector    

Time Needed: 

      

Financial Impact: Description and Background: 

      This Order will hire George Stratton as an irregular employee as a 

Plumbing Inspector.        

         

         

         

         

         

  

Category: 

☐            Action/Discussion 

☒                             Consent 

☐            Executive Session 

☐                         Hire Order 

☐                     Presentation 

Requested Motion: 
 

Approve the hire of George Stratton as Plumbing Inspector       

            

Attachments: Instructions Once Approved: 

1. Order    

2. Job Description    

3.       

4.       

5.        

         

         

         

         

          

Contact Person – Name and Department: Date Submitted: 

Natasha Tippetts – HR Specialist       2/14/2024 

 

10



BEFORE THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 
 

In the Matter of an Order Approving a 

Hire 

(George Stratton – Plumbing Inspector) 

 

) 

) 

) 

 

ORDER NO. ___________ 

 

WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of Ted Fitzgerald, Director of County Operations, that the 

following person shall be hired to fill the position identified below at the specified salary range, 

step, rate of pay, and status: 

             

Name    Position    Range/Step  Rate  Status 

George Stratton   Plumbing Inspector                    N/A  $35/HR        PT/Irreg 

 

The job description is attached hereto for reference. 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Curry County, a political subdivision of the State 

of Oregon, is in agreement with the above stated recommendation. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the above stated hire be in effect upon 

the receipt of a pre-employment drug screen.  

 

DATED this 21st day of March, 2024 

 

          BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          Brad Alcorn, Chair 

 

 

          _______________________________________ 

          John Herzog, Vice Chair 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_____________________________      _______________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738      Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

 

11



1 
 

CURRY COUNTY 
JOB DESCRIPTION 

 
JOB TITLE: Plumbing Inspector 

 
 
EXEMPT:    No 
SALARY LEVEL:  Irregular  
SUPERVISOR:     Building Official 
PREPARED BY:  Building Official     February 2024 
 
 
POSITION SUMMARY: 
 
Reviews plans submitted for proposed construction; inspects building construction in 

progress for compliance with building codes and ordinances; does related work as required. 

 

ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

1. Reviews plans submitted for proposed construction, alterations or repairs of 

commercial and residential plumbing for compliance with building codes and 

ordinances. 

 

2. Notes omissions or discrepancies and contacts parties who submitted plans and 

notifies them if any additional information or clarification is necessary. 

 

3. Performs cost analysis for projects and determines permit fees. 

 

4. Issues appropriate permits and collects permit fees. 

 

5. Maintains records of completed plans reviewed. 

 

6. Makes field inspections of building construction in progress for compliance with 

building codes and ordinances. 

 

7. Completes inspection forms and maintains record of activities. 

 

8. Investigates violations and complaints, particularly checking hazardous conditions. 

 

9. Provides information and assistance to contractors, builders, architects and the 

general public on aspects of the State of Oregon Building Codes. 

 
 

 
 

12



2 
 

 
SUPERVISORY RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
Supervision is not a responsibility of positions in this classification. 

Work is performed under the supervision of the Building Official who reviews primarily 

through results obtained and adherence to appropriate practices employed. 

 
QUALIFICATION REQUIREMENTS: 
 
Knowledge of . . .  

• Building construction, materials and methods 

• Standard practices, techniques and materials of the building trades 

• State, county and city codes, regulations and ordinances that pertain to building; the 

field of building inspection and safety. 

 

Ability to . . .  

• Read and interpret blueprints, plans and specifications 

• Perform mathematical computations related to construction estimating 

• Communicate effectively both verbally and in writing 

• Detect structural flaws and appraise the quality of construction 

• Establish and maintain effective working relationships with builders, contractors and 

the general public 

• Comprehend and interpret laws, rules and regulations. 

 
EDUCATION AND/OR EXPERIENCE: 
 
Three years of progressively responsible work experience in building inspection, structural 

engineering or general construction; or any satisfactory equivalent combination of 

experience and training which demonstrates the ability to perform the above described 

duties. 

 

Plumbing Inspector requires certification as an Oregon Commercial and Residential 

Plumbing Inspector. 

 
PHYSICAL DEMANDS AND WORK ENVIRONMENT: 

 

• Visual/hearing ability sufficient to comprehend written/verbal communication. 

• Ability to perform tasks involving physical activity, which may include lifting of heavy 

objects, bending, standing, walking, crawling in confined spaces, climbing ladders or 

sitting may be required.  

• Ability to deal with stress. 

• Ability to drive in a variety of adverse weather conditions, occasionally for lengthy 

distances, or at night. 

 

13



3 
 

Some duties of this position require field inspections in an outdoor environment and during 

adverse weather conditions. Field inspections may be at noisy construction sites. Employee 

may encounter various environmental situations at construction sites, including tobacco 

smoke, construction debris, or animals.   

 

Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform 

the essential functions. 

 
 

14



 
 

 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REQUEST FOR AGENDA ITEM  
BUSINESS MEETING 
 

Agenda Date: Agenda Item Title: 

 March 21, 2024   Renewal of AirMedCare Payroll Deduction Agreement   

Time Needed: 

     

Financial Impact: Description and Background: 

 n/a     Renewal of plans 6479 and 12471     

         

         

         

    

Category: 

☐            Action/Discussion 

☒                             Consent 

☐            Executive Session 

☐                         Hire Order 

☐                     Presentation 

Requested Motion: 
 

Approve the renewal of AirMedCare payroll deduction agreement.      

        

Attachments: Instructions Once Approved: 

1. Plan code 6479  

2. Plan code 12471    

3.       

4.       

5.        

Return originals to Julie Swift      

         

         

         

    

Contact Person – Name and Department: Date Submitted: 

 Julie Swift – Payroll & HR      3-14-2024 

 

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



 
 

 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

REQUEST FOR AGENDA ITEM  
BUSINESS MEETING 
 

Agenda Date: Agenda Item Title: 

March 21st 2024  FY24 Revised Fund Budgets      

        Time Needed: 

  30 Minutes   

Financial Impact: Description and Background: 

      Revised FY24 budgets to correct and balance select funds.  

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

       

Category: 

☒            Action/Discussion 

☐                             Consent 

☐            Executive Session 

☐                         Hire Order 

☐                     Presentation 

Requested Motion: 
 

Motion to approve revisions to the selected FY24 funds presented.      

Attachments: Instructions Once Approved: 

1. Resolution     

2.       

3.       

4.       

5.        

         

         

         

         

          

Contact Person – Name and Department: Date Submitted: 

Keina Wolf    03/13/2024 

 

60



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 

 

In the Matter of a Resolution Modifying 

Fund Revenues and Expenditures in the 

FY23-24 Budget for the Administration 

and General Funds 

 

) 

) 

) 

 

RESOLUTION NO. ___________ 

 

WHEREAS, due to funding and expenditure adjustments in the Administrative and General funds, 

it is the recommendation of the Finance Director that such funds should be revised for the purpose 

of accuracy and transparency to the 2023-2024 fiscal year budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, such revisions and reallocation of appropriation and transfers is allowed under ORS 

294.471, ORS 294.463 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that the 2023-2024 fiscal year budget for Curry 

County be revised as detailed in the attached for the specific purpose of providing revision and 

reallocation of revenues and expenditures through June 30, 2024. 

 

DATED this 21st day of March 2024.  

BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738 

Curry County Legal Counsel 

 

_________________________________________ 

Brad Alcorn, Chair 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

John Herzog, Vice Chair 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Jay Trost, Commissioner 

 

61



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
$2,024,176 $1,993,766 $1,925,000 1.10-413.90-311.10-000-00 Taxes - Prop - Current Year 2,096,500.00$                 171,500.00$                      

$14,295 $109,157 $55,000 1.10-413.90-311.15-000-00 Taxes - Prop - Prior Years 10,000.00$                       (45,000.00)$                       
$404,566 $426,053 $400,000 1.10-413.90-316.20-000-00 Taxes - Electric Co-Op 430,000.00$                     30,000.00$                        
$171,816 $129,620 $140,000 1.10-413.90-318.20-000-00 Fees - Cable Franchise 140,000.00$                     -$                                    
$914,865 $930,813 $920,000 1.10-413.90-332.10-000-00 DOI/BLM - O & C Land 15.227 -$                                   -$                                    

 $0 $5,000 1.10-413.90-332.12-000-00 Fed - Nat'l Wildlife R 15.659 5,000.00$                         -$                                    
 $793,346 $950,000 1.10-413.90-333.00-000-00 Fed - Pmt In Lieu Tax 15.226 950,000.00$                     -$                                    

$22 $9,282 $10,000 1.10-413.90-334.00-000-00 Other - St - PILT 10,000.00$                       -$                                    
$6,915 $6,593 $7,500 1.10-413.90-334.10-000-00 GR-St-CAFFA Non Dept A&T 7,500.00$                         -$                                    

$11,347 $12,309 $15,000 1.10-413.90-335.60-000-00 Shared - St - Tobacco Taxes 15,000.00$                       -$                                    
$123,417 $166,459 $125,000 1.10-413.90-335.70-000-00 Shared - St - Alcohol Taxes 125,000.00$                     -$                                    

$5,235 $4,581 $4,000 1.10-413.90-335.90-000-00 Shared - St - Amusement Tax 4,000.00$                         -$                                    
 $4,677 $5,000 1.10-413.90-336.00-000-00 Other - St - PILT - WOST 5,000.00$                         -$                                    

$119,337 $35,061 $50,000 1.10-413.90-380.00-000-00 Misc Revenue 50,000.00$                       -$                                    
$863 $512 $0 1.10-413.90-390.00-000-00 Reimbursement - Misc -$                                   -$                                    

$110,337  $0 1.10-413.90-391.97-000-00 Tran In - 1.90 ARP COVID PR -$                                   -$                                    
$18,380 $176,461 $50,000 1.10-413.90-391.99-000-00 Allocated Interest 50,000.00$                       -$                                    

$293,370 $434,530 $0 1.10-413.90-399.00-000-00 Unassigned Fund Balance -$                                   -$                                    
$750,000 $750,000 $830,000 1.10-413.90-399.01-000-00 Assigned Fund Balance 830,000.00$                     -$                                    

$80,000 $80,000 1.10-413.90-399.04-000-00 Nonspendable Fund Balance -$                                   -$                                    
$5,048,941 $6,063,220 $5,491,500 TOTAL RESOURCES 4,728,000.00$                 156,500.00$                     

$0 $5,000 1.10-413.90-490.00-320-00 Pro Svcs - Legal 2,500.00$                         (2,500.00)$                         
$140,998 $94,276 $25,000 1.10-413.90-490.00-330-00 Pro Svcs - General 5,000.00$                         (20,000.00)$                       

$6,801 $5,565 $10,000 1.10-413.90-490.00-330-01 Pro Svcs -  Media Services 1,000.00$                         (9,000.00)$                         
$0 $1,516 1.10-413.90-490.00-521-00 Ins - Liability - General 1,516.00$                         -$                                    

$1,220 $88,998 $75,000 1.10-413.90-490.00-522-00 Ins Settlement/Judgement 50,000.00$                       (25,000.00)$                       
$0 $109 1.10-413.90-490.00-524-00 Property Ins - Non Department 109.00$                             -$                                    

$0 $5,734 $0 1.10-413.90-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging -$                                   -$                                    
$0 $662 $0 1.10-413.90-490.00-610-00 Sup - Non-Capital Equipment -$                                   -$                                    

$6,766 $6,533 $15,000 1.10-413.90-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services 12,000.00$                       (3,000.00)$                         
$53 $0 $0 1.10-413.90-490.00-615-23 M & S Hammond House -$                                   -$                                    

$36,038 $42,936 $30,000 1.10-413.90-490.00-650-00 Membership Dues 30,000.00$                       -$                                    
$763 $0 $0 1.10-413.90-490.00-695-00 Bad Debt - Other 1,000.00$                         1,000.00$                          

$192,639 $244,706 $161,625 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 103,125.00$                     (58,500.00)$                      

GENERAL FUND - NON-DEPARTMENTAL

62



$0 $0 $409 1.10-413.90-491.17-000-15 Tran To - 2.17 CD GIS 409.00$                             -$                                    
$238,312 $38,003 $11,656 1.10-413.90-491.17-000-19 Tran To - 2.17 CD Planning 11,656.00$                       -$                                    

$0 $88,024 1.10-413.90-491.17-000-16 Tran To - 2.17 CD Surveyor 88,024.00$                       -$                                    
$77,255 $0 $272,939 1.10-413.90-491.17-000-29 Tran To - 2.17 CD Emerg Srvcs 272,939.00$                     -$                                    
$98,249 $195,985 $335,238 1.10-413.90-491.17-000-35 Tran To - 2.17 CD Code Enforce 335,238.00$                     -$                                    

$108,787 $92,887 $118,591 1.10-413.90-491.17-000-66 Tran To - 2.17 CD Veterans 118,591.00$                     -$                                    
$0 $0 1.10-413.90-491.20-400-00 Tran To - 2.20 Commissioners 6,087.00$                         6,087.00$                          
$0 $0 1.10-413.90-491.20-411-10 Tran To - 2.20 BOC Office 60,641.00$                       60,641.00$                        
$0 $0 1.10-413.90-491.20-415-30 Tran To - 2.20 Counsel 74,763.00$                       74,763.00$                        
$0 $0 1.10-413.90-491.20-415-50 Tran To - 2.20 HR/PR 57,224.00$                       57,224.00$                        

$155,795 $136,430 $250,820 1.10-413.90-491.20-419-40 Tran To - 2.20 Bldg Repair/Con 250,820.00$                     -$                                    
$0 $95,439 1.10-413.90-491.20-419-41 Tran To - 2.20 Occupancy 139,031.00$                     43,592.00$                        
$0 $23,392 1.10-413.90-491.23-000-00 Tran To - 1.37 Towers Maint 23,392.00$                       -$                                    

 $218,056 $0 1.10-413.90-491.28-000-20 Tran To - 1.28 Civ/Crim/Patrol -$                                   -$                                    
$85,703 $97,776 $142,179 1.10-413.90-491.28-000-21 Tran To - 1.28 Search & Rescue 142,179.00$                     -$                                    

$8,552 $16,939 $13,986 1.10-413.90-491.28-000-23 Tran To - 1.28 Marine Patrol 13,986.00$                       -$                                    
 $327,614 $327,614 1.10-413.90-491.28-000-26 Tran To - 1.28 Jail 327,614.00$                     -$                                    

$706,840 $692,952 $1,130,388 1.10-413.90-491.28-000-51 Tran To - 1.28 Communications 1,130,388.00$                 -$                                    
$50,073  $0 1.10-413.90-491.39-000-35 Tran To - 2.19 PH/HS Admin -$                                   -$                                    

$1,529,566 $1,816,642 $2,810,675 TOTAL TRANSFERS 3,052,982.00$                 242,307.00$                     
$0 $213,183 1.10-413.90-490.00-615-01 Other M&S Working Capital Res 213,183.00$                     -$                                    
$0 $38,000 1.10-413.90-490.00-852-00 Rsrv For Future Exp-Vrtl Srvr 38,000.00$                       -$                                    
$0 $60,000 1.10-413.90-490.00-852-05 Rsrv For Future Exp-Phone Hdwr 60,000.00$                       -$                                    

$0 $0 $311,183 TOTAL UNAPPROPRIATED 311,183.00$                     -$                                    
1.10-413.90-490.00-852-10 Ending Fund Balance 1,260,710.00$                 -$                                    

$0 $0 $0 1,260,710.00$                 -$                                    
$1,722,205 $2,061,349 $3,283,483 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 3,467,290.00$                 183,807.00$                     
$5,048,941 $6,063,220 $5,491,500 TOTAL FUND RESOURCES 4,728,000.00$                 156,500.00$                     
$3,326,736 $4,001,871 $2,208,017 GENERAL FUND ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                                    

63



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
$0 $0 2.20-415.12-380.00-000-00 Misc Revenue   
$0 $0 2.20-415.12-380.00-000-10 Misc Rev - Admin Fees - CPTI   

$45,936 $47,168 $49,645 2.20-415.12-390.88-110-00 IGS - 1.10 General Fund 49,645$                              
$144,720 $153,418 $153,418 2.20-415.12-390.88-115-00 IGS - 1.15 Road 153,418$                            

$363 $372 $396 2.20-415.12-390.88-125-00 IGS - 1.25 Law Library 396$                                    
$119,784 $126,049 $132,360 2.20-415.12-390.88-128-00 IGS - 1.28 SO-SAR/Mar/For/P&P 132,360$                            

$1,896 $1,620 $1,989 2.20-415.12-390.88-137-00 IGS - 1.37 Towers 1,989$                                
$603 $660 $698 2.20-415.12-390.88-190-00 IGS - 1.90 Solid Waste 698$                                    

$10,005 $2,796 $3,000 2.20-415.12-390.88-214-00 IGS - 2.14 County Fair 3,000$                                
$33,936 $39,534 $40,143 2.20-415.12-390.88-217-00 IGS - 2.17 Community Develop 40,143$                              

$4,254 $4,140 $4,141 2.20-415.12-390.88-221-00 IGS - 6.05 General Vehicle Svc 4,141$                                
$2,819 $0 $0 2.20-415.12-390.88-250-16 IGS - 2.50 GR VOCA Bas 16.575 -$                                     

$256 $3,060 $3,064 2.20-415.12-390.88-250-17 IGS - 2.50 Gr VOCA Bas 16.575 3,064$                                
$26,215 $23,640 $21,000 2.20-415.12-391.90-000-00 Tran In - 1.90 TLT 21,000$                              

$0 $0 2.20-415.12-399.00-000-00 Unrestricted Fund Balance   
$0 $0 2.20-415.12-399.01-000-00 Assigned Fund Balance   

$390,787 $402,457 $409,854 TOTAL RESOURCES 409,854$                           -$                                    
$198,433 $116,571 $183,107 2.20-415.12-490.00-110-00 Sal - Regular 135,107$                           (48,000)$                             

$45 $0 2.20-415.12-490.00-130-00 Sal - Overtime 1,000$                               1,000$                                
$47,149 $30,329 $47,724 2.20-415.12-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance 47,724$                             -$                                    

$1,250 $1,150 $1,800 2.20-415.12-490.00-213-10 Ben - Health Reimburse 1,800$                               -$                                    
$183 $111 $202 2.20-415.12-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance 202$                                   -$                                    

$15,402 $8,569 $14,008 2.20-415.12-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA 14,008$                             -$                                    
$40,398 $12,737 $50,116 2.20-415.12-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion 50,116$                             -$                                    

$969 $965 $1,373 2.20-415.12-490.00-250-00 Ben - Unemployment Insurance 1,373$                               -$                                    
$126 $732 2.20-415.12-490.00-255-00 Ben - Oregon Paid Leave 732$                                   -$                                    

$202 $143 $241 2.20-415.12-490.00-260-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation 241$                                   -$                                    
$116 $75 $137 2.20-415.12-490.00-290-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment 137$                                   -$                                    

$304,102 $170,822 $299,440 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 252,440$                           (47,000)$                            
$1,365 $1,000 2.20-415.12-490.00-310-00 Pro Svcs - Training  & Ed 1,000$                               -$                                    

$90,271 $76,345 $78,000 2.20-415.12-490.00-325-00 Pro Svcs - Audit & Acctg 78,000$                             -$                                    
$1,332 $1,400 $1,000 2.20-415.12-490.00-390-00 Bank fees - A/P 1,000$                               -$                                    

$461 $0 2.20-415.12-490.00-415-00 Util - Telephone 500$                                   500$                                    

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES - ACCOUNTING

64



$9,744 $30,384 $14,756 2.20-415.12-490.00-438-00 Rep & Maint - Software 14,756$                             -$                                    
$1,355 $1,568 $1,581 2.20-415.12-490.00-521-00 Ins - Liability - General 2,200$                               619$                                    

$0 $0 2.20-415.12-490.00-525-00 Ins - Bonds 1,000$                               1,000$                                
$447 $1,375 $250 2.20-415.12-490.00-541-00 Advertising - Legal 500$                                   250$                                    
$469 $0 $0 2.20-415.12-490.00-542-00 Advertising - Other -$                                    -$                                    
$505 $783 $800 2.20-415.12-490.00-550-00 Copying & Printing 800$                                   -$                                    

$1,381 $1,000 2.20-415.12-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging 1,000$                               -$                                    
$0 $300 2.20-415.12-490.00-582-00 IGS -  Motor Pool 300$                                   -$                                    

$246 $0 2.20-415.12-490.00-583-00 Travel - Mileage Allowance 1,000$                               1,000$                                
$757 $0 2.20-415.12-490.00-584-00 Travel - Transportation 500$                                   500$                                    

$0 $240 2.20-415.12-490.00-586-00 Computer Software 500$                                   260$                                    
$1,092 $2,399 $1,000 2.20-415.12-490.00-595-00 Postage 1,500$                               500$                                    
$2,467 $1,528 $1,500 2.20-415.12-490.00-600-00 Sup - Office 2,000$                               500$                                    

$685 $1,350 2.20-415.12-490.00-610-00 Sup - Non-Capital Equipment 1,350$                               -$                                    
$852 $381 $0 2.20-415.12-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services 500$                                   500$                                    

$192 $385 2.20-415.12-490.00-650-00 Dues - Membership 500$                                   115$                                    
$108,535 $121,250 $103,162 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 108,906$                           5,744$                                

$0 $0 $7,252 2.20-415.12-496.00-000-00 Operating Contingency 48,508$                             41,256$                              
$0 $0 $7,252 TOTAL CONTINGENCY 48,508$                             41,256$                              

$412,637 $292,072 $409,854 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 409,854$                           -$                                    
(21,849)                    $110,385 $0 ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                                    -$                                    

65



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
$0.00 $5,500 $0 2.20-411.10-380.00-000-00 Misc Revenue -$                                   

$17,318 $14,480 $15,209 2.20-411.10-390.88-110-00 IGS - 1.10 General Fund 75,850$                            60,641$                             
$54,573 $46,999 $49,349 2.20-411.10-390.88-115-00 IGS - 1.15 Road 49,349$                            -$                                   

$141 $115 $121 2.20-411.10-390.88-125-00 IGS - 1.25 Law Library 121$                                  -$                                   
$45,171 $38,617 $40,548 2.20-411.10-390.88-128-00 IGS - 1.28 SO-SAR/Mar/For/P&P 40,548$                            -$                                   

$867 $868 $911 2.20-411.10-390.88-137-00 IGS - 1.37 Towers 911$                                  -$                                   
$228 $204 $214 2.20-411.10-390.88-190-00 IGS - 1.90 Solid Waste 214$                                  -$                                   

$3,771 $857 $900 2.20-411.10-390.88-214-00 IGS - 2.14 County Fair 900$                                  -$                                   
$12,807 $12,120 $12,299 2.20-411.10-390.88-217-00 IGS - 2.17 Community Develop 12,299$                            -$                                   

$1,599 $1,269 $1,269 2.20-411.10-390.88-221-00 IGS - 6.05 General Vehicle Svc 1,269$                               -$                                   
$0 $0 2.20-411.10-399.01-000-00 Assigned Fund Balance -$                                   -$                                   

$136,475 $121,029 $120,820 TOTAL RESOURCES 181,461$                          $60,641
$62,562 $76,672 $71,079 2.20-411.10-490.00-110-00 Sal - Regular 90,000$                            18,921$                             

$0 $2,400 2.20-411.10-490.00-120-00 Sal - Irregular -$                                   (2,400)$                              
$36 $0 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-130-00 Sal - Overtime 600$                                  600$                                   

$17,550 $20,372 $19,003 2.20-411.10-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance 31,453$                            12,450$                             
$895 $1,035 2.20-411.10-490.00-213-10 Ben - Health Reimburse 1,800$                               765$                                   

$51 $54 $95 2.20-411.10-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance 150$                                  55$                                     
$4,779 $5,764 $5,438 2.20-411.10-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA 6,755$                               1,317$                               

$13,759 $13,624 $19,454 2.20-411.10-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion 30,000$                            10,546$                             
$395 $541 $533 2.20-411.10-490.00-250-00 Ben - Unemployment Insurance 600$                                  67$                                     

$93 $284 2.20-411.10-490.00-255-00 Ben - Oregon Paid Leave 540$                                  256$                                   
$71 $93 $93 2.20-411.10-490.00-260-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation 200$                                  107$                                   
$43 $49 $53 2.20-411.10-490.00-290-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment 100$                                  47$                                     

$99,245 $118,157 $119,467 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 162,198$                          42,731$                             
$2,775 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-330-00 Pro Svcs - General 12,000$                            12,000$                             

$0 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-416-00 Util - Cellular Phone 100$                                  100$                                   
$509 $448 $452 2.20-411.10-490.00-521-00 Gen Liab Ins - BOC 600$                                  148$                                   
$671 $865 $613 2.20-411.10-490.00-524-00 Property Ins - BOC 1,213$                               600$                                   

$2,293 $1,822 $1,000 2.20-411.10-490.00-541-00 Advertising - Legal 1,000$                               -$                                   
$679 $675 $750 2.20-411.10-490.00-550-00 Copying & Printing 750$                                  -$                                   

$70 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging 700$                                  700$                                   
$81 $0 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-582-00 IGS - Motor Pool -$                                    

$0 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-583-00 Travel - Mileage Allowance 300$                                  300$                                   

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES - BOC OFFICE

66



$7 $250 2.20-411.10-490.00-595-00 Postage 250$                                  -$                                   
$620 $1,320 $1,200 2.20-411.10-490.00-600-00 Sup - Office 1,200$                               -$                                   
$176 $0 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-606-00 Event Food Supplies -$                                   -$                                   
$315 $256 $150 2.20-411.10-490.00-610-00 Sup - Non-Capital Equipment 150$                                  -$                                   
$342 $423 $300 2.20-411.10-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services 300$                                  -$                                   
$153 $85 $200 2.20-411.10-490.00-640-00 Books & Periodicals 200$                                  -$                                   
$720 $4,367 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-650-00 Dues - Membership 500$                                  500$                                   

$0 $0 2.20-411.10-490.00-680-00 Late Fees/Finance Charge   

$6,559 $13,112 $4,915 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES $19,263 $14,348
$105,804 $131,269 $124,382 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS $181,461 $57,079

$30,671 (10,240)          (3,562)                     ENDING FUND BALANCE $0 $3,562

67



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
$0 $0 2.20-419.40-380.00-000-00 Miscellaneous Revenue   
$0 $0 2.20-419.40-390.00-000-00 Reimbursement - Other   
$0 $0 2.20-419.40-391.00-000-00 Tran In - 2.21 Bldg Rep & Cons   
$0 $0 2.20-419.40-391.02-000-00 Tran In - 1.10 AC use 391.12   
$0 $0 2.20-419.40-391.05-000-00 Tran In - 2.35 Children & Fam   

$155,795 $136,430 $250,820 2.20-419.40-391.10-000-00 Tran In - 1.10 GF Other/Non De 250,820.00$                     -$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-419.40-391.11-000-00 Tran In - 1.40 County Parks   
$0 $0 2.20-419.40-391.99-000-00 Allocated Interest   
$0 $0 2.20-419.40-399.01-000-00 Assigned Fund Balance   

$155,795 $136,430 $250,820 TOTAL RESOURCES 250,820.00$                     -$                                    
$37,965 $29,739 $63,864 2.20-419.40-490.00-110-00 Sal - Regular 63,864.00$                       -$                                    
$11,333 $8,167 $20,742 2.20-419.40-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance 20,742.00$                       -$                                    

$140 $275 $780 2.20-419.40-490.00-213-10 Ben - Health Reimburse 780.00$                             -$                                    
$63 $38 $112 2.20-419.40-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance 112.00$                             -$                                    

$2,956 $2,234 $4,886 2.20-419.40-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA 4,886.00$                         -$                                    
$8,470 $6,325 $17,480 2.20-419.40-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion 17,480.00$                       -$                                    

$219 $218 $479 2.20-419.40-490.00-250-00 Ben - Unemployment Insurance 479.00$                             -$                                    
$31 $255 2.20-419.40-490.00-255-00 Ben - Oregon Paid Leave 255.00$                             -$                                    

$812 $1,009 $2,256 2.20-419.40-490.00-260-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation 2,256.00$                         -$                                    
$26 $20 $59 2.20-419.40-490.00-290-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment 59.00$                               -$                                    

$61,983 $48,057 $110,913 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 110,913.00$                     -$                                    
$457 $500 2.20-419.40-490.00-310-00 Pro Svcs - Training & Ed 500.00$                             -$                                    

$1,886 $576 $60,000 2.20-419.40-490.00-330-00 Pro Svcs - General 15,000.00$                       (45,000.00)$                      
$71,444 $85,540 $45,000 2.20-419.40-490.00-431-00 Rep & Maint - Building 65,000.00$                       20,000.00$                        

$1,272 $977 $1,061 2.20-419.40-490.00-521-00 Gen Liab Ins 1,500.00$                         436.00$                             
$2,499 $823 $3,000 2.20-419.40-490.00-581-00 IGS -  Assigned Vehicles 3,000.00$                         -$                                    

$77,101 $88,373 $109,561 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 85,000.00$                       (24,564.00)$                      
$12,559 $0  2.20-419.40-490.00-849-00 Principal Payments 26,986.00$                       26,986.00$                        

$4,151 $0  2.20-419.40-490.00-851-00 Debt Svc - Interest Payments 6,435.00$                         6,435.00$                          
$16,710 $0 $0 TOTAL DEBT SERVICES 33,421.00$                       33,421.00$                        

$0 $30,346 2.20-419.40-496.00-000-00 Operating Contingency 21,486.00$                       (8,860.00)$                         
$0 $0 $30,346 TOTAL CONTINGENCY 21,486.00$                       (8,860.00)$                         

$155,795 $136,430 $250,820 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 250,820.00$                     (3.00)$                                 
$0 $0 $0 ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                                    

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES - BUILDING REPAIR & CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

68



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
27                   0 0 2.20-400.00-390.00-000-00 Reimbursement - Misc 156.00$                            156.00$                            

37,671           36,682           38,518                       2.20-400.00-390.88-110-00 IGS - 1.10 General Fund Depts 44,605.00$                      6,087.00$                         
118,704         119,029         124,980                     2.20-400.00-390.88-115-00 IGS - 1.15 Road 124,980.00$                    

300                292                307                             2.20-400.00-390.88-125-00 IGS - 1.25 Law Library 307.00$                            
98,247           97,801           102,691                     2.20-400.00-390.88-128-00 IGS - 1.28 SO SAR/Mar/For/P&P 102,691.00$                    

1,329             1,255             1,318                         2.20-400.00-390.88-137-00 IGS - 1.37 Towers 1,318.00$                        
495                516                542                             2.20-400.00-390.88-190-00 IGS - 1.90 Solid Waste 542.00$                            

8,205             2,171             2,250                         2.20-400.00-390.88-214-00 IGS - 2.14 County Fair 2,250.00$                        
27,837           30,674           31,144                       2.20-400.00-390.88-217-00 IGS - 2.17 Community Dev 31,144.00$                      

3,480             3,213             3,213                         2.20-400.00-390.88-221-00 IGS - 6.05 General Vehicle Svc 3,213.00$                        
296,295         291,633         304,963                     TOTAL RESOURCES 311,206.00$                    6,243.00$                         
203,709         206,597         207,443                     2.20-400.00-490.00-105-00 Sal - Elected 207,443.00$                    

46,800           48,177           49,572                       2.20-400.00-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance 49,572.00$                      
0 1,750             1,800                         2.20-400.00-490.00-213-10 Ben - Health Reimburse 1,800.00$                        

257                197                173                             2.20-400.00-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance 173.00$                            
15,502           15,803           15,869                       2.20-400.00-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA 15,869.00$                      
14,830           14,639           18,738                       2.20-400.00-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion 18,738.00$                      

0 198                0 2.20-400.00-490.00-250-00 Ben - Unemployment Insurance -$                                  
0 207                830                             2.20-400.00-490.00-255-00 Ben - Oregon Paid Leave 830.00$                            

379                513                515                             2.20-400.00-490.00-260-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation 515.00$                            
138                137                89                               2.20-400.00-490.00-290-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment 150.00$                            61.00$                               

281,614         288,218         295,029                     TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 295,090.00$                    61.00$                               
0 1,975             1,250                         2.20-400.00-490.00-315-00 Conference Fees 4,000.00$                        2,750.00$                         

774                976                480                             2.20-400.00-490.00-416-00 Util - Cellular Phone 1,000.00$                        520.00$                            
1,107             1,136             1,138                         2.20-400.00-490.00-521-00 Gen Liab Ins 1,500.00$                        362.00$                            

679                684                750                             2.20-400.00-490.00-550-00 Copying & Printing 750.00$                            
0 2,577             0 2.20-400.00-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging 1,500.00$                        1,500.00$                         

870                1,732             3,000                         2.20-400.00-490.00-582-00 IGS -  Motor Pool 3,000.00$                        
373                1,230             0 2.20-400.00-490.00-583-00 Travel - Mileage Allowance 500.00$                            500.00$                            

0 0 900                             2.20-400.00-490.00-584-00 Travel - Transportation 250.00$                            (650.00)$                           
0 63                   300                             2.20-400.00-490.00-600-00 Sup - Office 1,500.00$                        1,200.00$                         

48                   207                200                             2.20-400.00-490.00-606-00 Event Food Supplies 200.00$                            
272                251                200                             2.20-400.00-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services 200.00$                            

4,123             10,830           8,218                         TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 14,400.00$                      6,182.00$                         
0 0 1,716                         2.20-400.00-496.00-000-00 Operating Contingency 1,716.00$                        

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES - COMMISSIONERS

69



0 0 1,716                         TOTAL CONTINGENCY 1,716.00$                        -$                                   
285,737         299,048         304,963                     TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 311,206.00$                    6,243.00$                         

10,558           (7,415)            0 ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                                  -$                                   

70



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
$50 $0 $0 2.20-415.30-380.00-000-00 Misc Revenue 500$                                  500$                                   

$29,796 $28,271 $29,686 2.20-415.30-390.88-110-00 IGS - 1.10 General Fund 104,449$                          74,763$                             
$93,885 $91,735 $96,322 2.20-415.30-390.88-115-00 IGS - 1.15 Road 96,322$                            -$                                   
$77,706 $75,374 $79,144 2.20-415.30-390.88-128-00 IGS - 1.28 SO-SAR/Mar/For/P&P 79,144$                            -$                                   

$1,413 $972 $1,482 2.20-415.30-390.88-137-00 IGS - 1.37 Towers 1,482$                               -$                                   
$393 $397 $417 2.20-415.30-390.88-190-00 IGS - 1.90 Oth Special Revenue 417$                                  -$                                   

$6,489 $1,674 $1,800 2.20-415.30-390.88-214-00 IGS - 2.14 County Fair 1,800$                               -$                                   
$22,020 $23,649 $24,004 2.20-415.30-390.88-217-00 IGS - 2.17 Community Develop 24,004$                            -$                                   

$2,751 $2,476 $2,476 2.20-415.30-390.88-221-00 IGS - 6.05 General Vehicle Svc 2,476$                               -$                                   
$0 $0 2.20-415.30-390.88-250-36 IGS - 2.50 Justice Rvest 19-20 -$                                   -$                                   
$0 $0 2.20-415.30-399.01-000-00 Assigned Fund Balance -$                                   -$                                   

$234,503 $224,548 $235,331 TOTAL RESOURCES 310,594$                          75,263$                             
$119,141 $141,875 $130,936 2.20-415.30-490.00-110-00 Sal - Regular 175,000$                          44,064$                             

$4,300 $0 $0 2.20-415.30-490.00-120-00 Sal - Irregular -$                                   -$                                   
$675 $0 2.20-415.30-490.00-130-00 Sal - Overtime 12,000$                            12,000$                             

$26,286 $27,420 $27,430 2.20-415.30-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance 35,000$                            7,570$                               
$1,423 $1,494 2.20-415.30-490.00-213-10 Ben - Health Reimburse 1,494$                               -$                                   

$138 $119 $123 2.20-415.30-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance 123$                                  -$                                   
$9,372 $10,820 $10,017 2.20-415.30-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA 13,390$                            3,373$                               

$20,063 $17,874 $35,837 2.20-415.30-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion 47,900$                            12,063$                             
$738 $848 $982 2.20-415.30-490.00-250-00 Ben - Unemployment Insurance 650$                                  (332)$                                 

$169 $524 2.20-415.30-490.00-255-00 Ben - Oregon Paid Leave 856$                                  332$                                   
$118 $178 $172 2.20-415.30-490.00-260-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation 225$                                  53$                                     

$70 $69 $76 2.20-415.30-490.00-290-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment 76$                                    -$                                   
$180,227 $201,469 $207,591 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 286,714$                          79,123$                             

$509 $0 $750 2.20-415.30-490.00-310-00 Pro Svcs - Training & Ed 750$                                  -$                                   
$24,393 $77,610 $20,000 2.20-415.30-490.00-320-00 Pro Svcs - Legal 15,000$                            (5,000)$                              

(953)                         $0 2.20-415.30-490.00-330-00 Pro Svcs - Consulting -$                                   -$                                   
$40 $488 $480 2.20-415.30-490.00-416-00 Util - Cellular Telephone 480$                                  -$                                   

$875 $874 $902 2.20-415.30-490.00-521-00 Gen Liab Ins - Counsel 1,200$                               298$                                   
$78 $173 $300 2.20-415.30-490.00-541-00 Advertising - Legal 300$                                  -$                                   

$679 $2,169 $1,000 2.20-415.30-490.00-550-00 Copying & Printing 1,500$                               500$                                   
$507 $791 $1,000 2.20-415.30-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging 1,000$                               -$                                   

$27 $0 $0 2.20-415.30-490.00-582-00 IGS -  Motor Pool -$                                   -$                                   
$229 $155 $900 2.20-415.30-490.00-583-00 Travel - Mileage Allowance 900$                                  -$                                   

$38 $250 2.20-415.30-490.00-595-00 Postage 250$                                  -$                                   

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES - COUNTY COUNSEL

71



$895 $1,112 $1,200 2.20-415.30-490.00-600-00 Sup - Office 1,000$                               (200)$                                 
$1,126 $1,350 2.20-415.30-490.00-610-00 Sup - Non-Capital Equipment -$                                   (1,350)$                              

$850 $870 $500 2.20-415.30-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services 500$                                  -$                                   
$0 $1,400 2.20-415.30-490.00-640-00 Books & Periodicals 1,000$                               (400)$                                 

$713 $0 $0 2.20-415.30-490.00-650-00 Dues - Membership  
$29,796 $84,455 $30,032 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 23,880$                            (6,152)$                              

$210,023 $285,924 $237,623 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 310,594$                          72,971$                             
$24,480 (61,376)                   (2,292)                     ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                                   2,292$                               

72



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
$2,831 $2,699 $2,300 2.20-419.20-334.10-000-00 Grants - St - CAFFA 2,300$                               -$                                    

$43,977 $36,496 $38,332 2.20-419.20-390.88-110-00 IGS - 1.10 General Fund 38,332$                              
$138,573 $118,452 $124,376 2.20-419.20-390.88-115-00 IGS - 1.15 Road 124,376$                            

$348 $288 $306 2.20-419.20-390.88-125-00 IGS - 1.25 Law Library 306$                                    
$114,696 $97,322 $102,194 2.20-419.20-390.88-128-00 IGS - 1.28 SO-SAR/Mar/For/P&P 102,194$                            

$2,955 $1,248 $3,102 2.20-419.20-390.88-137-00 IGS - 1.37 Towers 3,102$                                
$579 $513 $539 2.20-419.20-390.88-190-00 IGS - 1.90 Oth Special Revenue 539$                                    

$32,502 $30,126 $30,993 2.20-419.20-390.88-217-00 IGS - 2.17 Community Develop 30,993$                              
$4,059 $3,197 $3,197 2.20-419.20-390.88-221-00 IGS - 6.05 General Vehicle Svc 3,197$                                

$0 $768,668 2.20-419.20-391.90-000-00 Tran In - 1.90 ARP 768,668$                           -$                                    
$340,520 $290,341 $1,074,007 TOTAL RESOURCES 1,074,007$                        

2.20-419.20-490.00-110-00 Sal - Regular 225,000$                           225,000$                            
2.20-419.20-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance 20,000$                             20,000$                              
2.20-419.20-490.00-213-10 Ben - Health Reimburse 1,200$                               1,200$                                
2.20-419.20-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance 25$                                     25$                                      
2.20-419.20-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA 12,000$                             12,000$                              
2.20-419.20-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion 15,000$                             15,000$                              
2.20-419.20-490.00-255-00 Ben - Unemployment Insurance 1,200$                               1,200$                                
2.20-419.20-490.00-260-00 Ben - Oregon Paid Leave 700$                                   700$                                    
2.20-419.20-490.00-290-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation 2,000$                               2,000$                                
2.20-419.20-490.00-310-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment 150$                                   150$                                    

$0 $0 $0 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES $277,275 $277,275
$0 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-310-00 Pro Svcs - Training & Ed 1,000$                               1,000$                                

$163,970 $171,857 $500,000 2.20-419.20-490.00-330-00 Pro Svcs - General 200,000$                           (300,000)$                          
$0 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-340-00 Pro Svcs - Medical Lab 300$                                   300$                                    

$24,896 $31,682 $25,000 2.20-419.20-490.00-415-00 Util - Telephone/Internet 50,000$                             25,000$                              
$11,753 $990 $7,500 2.20-419.20-490.00-430-00 Rep & Maint - Equipment 5,000$                               (2,500)$                               

$1,257 $1,131 $1,067 2.20-419.20-490.00-521-00 Gen Liab Ins - Info Technology 1,700$                               633$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging 500$                                   500$                                    

$61 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-582-00 IGS -  Motor Pool -$                                    -$                                    
$75,208 $94,110 $75,000 2.20-419.20-490.00-586-00 Computer Software - PC 75,000$                             -$                                    

$0 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-600-00 Sup - Office 1,000$                               1,000$                                
$19,894 $1,000 2.20-419.20-490.00-610-00 Sup - Non-Capital Equipment 175,000$                           174,000$                            

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

73



$65,424 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-612-00 Sup - Non-Capital Computer Eq 1,000$                               1,000$                                
$230 $2,000 2.20-419.20-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services 5,000$                               3,000$                                

$0 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-650-00 Dues - Membership 500$                                   500$                                    
$277,085 $385,381 $611,567 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 516,000$                           (95,567)$                            

$0 $0 $462,440 2.20-419.20-496.00-000-00 Operating Contingency 511,836.00$                     49,396.00$                        
$0 $0 $462,440 TOTAL CONTINGENCY 511,836.00$                     49,396.00$                        

$46,693 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-744-00 Cap Outlay - Comp & Peripheral -$                                    -$                                    
$0 $0 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-745-00 Cap Outlay - Other Capital 25,000.00$                       25,000.00$                        
$0 $46,693 $0 TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 25,000.00$                       25,000.00$                        

$10,120 $0 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-849-00 Principal Payments 20,263$                             20,264$                              
$466 $0 $0 2.20-419.20-490.00-851-00 Interest Payments 908$                                   908$                                    

$10,586 $0 $0 TOTAL DEBT SERVICES 21,171$                             21,172$                              
$287,671 $432,073 $1,074,007 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 1,074,007$                       277,276$                            

$52,849 (141,732)                 $0 ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                                    (1)$                                       

74



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
$0 $0 2.20-419.41-380.00-000-10 Misc Revenue 600$                                   600$                                    

$99,810 $124,453 $130,676 2.20-419.41-390.88-110-00 IGS - 1.10 General Fund 174,268$                           43,592$                              
$936 $1,491 $0 2.20-419.41-390.88-115-00 IGS -  Motor Pool   

$1,488 $1,507 $1,582 2.20-419.41-390.88-125-00 IGS - 1.25 Law Library 1,582$                                
$229,044 $232,352 $243,970 2.20-419.41-390.88-128-00 IGS - 1.28 SO-SAR/Mar/For/P&P 243,970$                            

$58,416 $76,409 $79,552 2.20-419.41-390.88-217-00 IGS - 2.17 Community Develop 79,552$                              
$0 $95,439 2.20-419.41-391.00-110-00 Tran In - 1.10 GF Other 95,439$                              
$0 $0 2.20-419.41-399.01-000-00 Assigned Fund Balance   

$389,694 $436,212 $551,219 TOTAL RESOURCES 595,411.00$                     44,192.00$                        
$107,978 $137,293 $118,974 2.20-419.41-490.00-110-00 Sal - Regular $132,000 $13,026

$14,374 $3,887 $34,580 2.20-419.41-490.00-120-00 Sal - Irregular $29,000 -$5,580
$5,013 $1,586 $0 2.20-419.41-490.00-130-00 Sal - Overtime $2,000 $2,000

$36,779 $50,886 $40,930 2.20-419.41-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance $40,930 $0
$1,210 $1,952 $1,560 2.20-419.41-490.00-213-10 Ben - Health Reimburse $1,700 $140

$208 $253 $224 2.20-419.41-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance $224 $0
$9,646 $10,999 $9,102 2.20-419.41-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA $9,102 $0

$16,785 $18,195 $32,563 2.20-419.41-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion $32,563 $0
$863 $1,170 $892 2.20-419.41-490.00-250-00 Ben - Unemployment Insurance $892 $0

$131 $476 2.20-419.41-490.00-255-00 Ben - Oregon Paid Leave $476 $0
$1,811 $3,428 $2,645 2.20-419.41-490.00-260-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation $3,200 $555

$122 $134 $119 2.20-419.41-490.00-290-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment $119 $0
$194,790 $229,916 $242,065 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES $252,206 $10,141

$708 $3,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-310-00 Pro Svcs - Training & Ed $3,000 $0
$102 $3,741 $9,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-330-00 Pro Svcs - General $15,000 $6,000

$8,535 $50,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-345-00 Pro Svcs - Janitorial $50,000 $0
$17,920 $18,636 $19,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-411-00 Util - Water & Sewer $19,000 $0

$2,028 $1,907 $1,920 2.20-419.41-490.00-416-00 Util - Cellular Telephone $1,920 $0
$13,483 $17,098 $15,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-421-00 Util - Waste Disposal $15,000 $0

$3,118 $10,689 $10,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-430-00 Rep & Maint - Equipment $16,000 $6,000
$87,653 $61,086 $50,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-431-00 Rep & Maint - Building $75,000 $25,000

$1,435 $1,693 $1,649 2.20-419.41-490.00-521-00 Gen Liab Ins - Occupancy $2,500 $851
$42 $0 2.20-419.41-490.00-522-00 Auto Liab Ins $100 $100

$0 $85 2.20-419.41-490.00-524-00 Property Ins - Occupancy $85 $0

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES - OCCUPANCY

75



$574 $1,211 $1,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-550-00 Copying & Printing $1,500 $500
$0 $1,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging $1,000 $0

$3,475 $1,260 $3,500 2.20-419.41-490.00-581-00 IGS -  Assigned Vehicles $3,500 $0
$638 $1,317 $1,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-582-00 IGS -  Motor Pool $1,600 $600

$342 $1,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-583-00 Travel - Mileage Allowance $1,000 $0
$0 $28,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-588-00 IGS - 2.22 Veh Replacement $28,000 $0

$689 $1,667 $2,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-600-00 Sup - Office $2,000 $0
$300 $0 2.20-419.41-490.00-602-00 Sup - Uniforms $0 $0

$14,236 $11,444 $10,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-603-00 Sup - Janitorial $10,000 $0
$14,091 $13,217 $10,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-610-00 Sup - Non-Capital Equipment $10,000 $0

$8,121 $2,048 $5,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services $5,000 $0
$86,884 $85,150 $85,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-622-00 Util - Electricity $80,000 -$5,000

$39 $1,514 $2,000 2.20-419.41-490.00-627-00 Equipment Diesel $2,000 $0
$254,486 $243,605 $309,154 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES $343,205 $34,051
$449,276 $473,521 $551,219 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS $595,411 $44,192
(59,582)                    (37,309)                    $0 ENDING FUND BALANCE $0 $0

76



2022 Actual 2023 Actual 2024 Adopted Account Number Account Description 2024 Revised 2024 Change
$9 $0 $0 2.20-415.50-380.00-000-00 Misc Revenue -$                                    -$                                    

$0 $0 2.20-415.50-390.00-000-00 Reimbursement - Misc -$                                    -$                                    
$15,537 $19,867 $20,863 2.20-415.50-390.88-110-00 IGS - 1.10 General Fund 78,087$                             57,224$                              
$48,948 $64,476 $67,700 2.20-415.50-390.88-115-00 IGS - 1.15 Road 67,700$                             -$                                    

$123 $158 $166 2.20-415.50-390.88-125-00 IGS - 1.25 Law Library 166$                                   -$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-415.50-390.88-127-00 IGS - 1.27 Econ Develop -$                                    -$                                    

$40,512 $52,976 $55,176 2.20-415.50-390.88-128-00 IGS - 1.28 SO-SAR/Mar/For/P&P 55,176$                             -$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-415.50-390.88-130-00 IGS - 1.30 Brookings Airpt -$                                    -$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-415.50-390.88-140-00 IGS - 1.40 County Parks -$                                    -$                                    

$204 $279 $293 2.20-415.50-390.88-190-00 IGS - 1.90 Oth Special Revenue 293$                                   -$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-415.50-390.88-212-00 IGS - 2.12 Victims' Assist -$                                    -$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-415.50-390.88-213-00 IGS - 2.13 Child Adv -$                                    -$                                    

$3,384 $1,176 $1,250 2.20-415.50-390.88-214-00 IGS - 2.14 County Fair 1,250$                               -$                                    
$11,421 $16,602 $16,856 2.20-415.50-390.88-217-00 IGS - 2.17 Community Develop 16,856$                             -$                                    

$1,359 $0 $0 2.20-415.50-390.88-250-16 IGS - 2.50 VAP VOCA Basic -$                                    -$                                    
$1,024 $1,024 2.20-415.50-390.88-250-17 IGS - 2.50 VAP VOCA Basic 1,024$                               -$                                    

$0 $0 2.20-415.50-390.88-423-51 IGS - 2.50 Justice Rvest 17-19 -$                                    -$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-415.50-391.00-110-00 Tran In - 1.10 GF Other -$                                    -$                                    
$0 $0 2.20-415.50-399.01-000-00 Assigned Fund Balance -$                                    -$                                    

$121,497 $156,558 $163,328 TOTAL RESOURCES 220,552$                           57,224$                              
$64,732 $73,257 $67,224 2.20-415.50-490.00-110-00 Sal - Regular 117,500$                           50,276$                              

$0 $0 2.20-415.50-490.00-130-00 Sal - Overtime 500$                                   500$                                    
$15,600 $16,334 $16,524 2.20-415.50-490.00-213-00 Ben - Health Insurance 25,000$                             8,476$                                

$600 $600 2.20-415.50-490.00-213-10 Ben - Health Reimburse 1,000$                               400$                                    
$86 $84 $86 2.20-415.50-490.00-214-00 Ben - Life Insurance 86$                                     -$                                    

$4,920 $5,588 $5,143 2.20-415.50-490.00-220-00 Ben - FICA 6,000$                               857$                                    
$18,752 $21,055 $22,957 2.20-415.50-490.00-230-00 Ben - PERS - County Portion 32,957$                             10,000$                              

$314 $393 $504 2.20-415.50-490.00-250-00 Ben - Unemployment Insurance 504$                                   -$                                    
$91 $269 2.20-415.50-490.00-255-00 Ben - Oregon Paid Leave 369$                                   100$                                    

$57 $80 $88 2.20-415.50-490.00-260-00 Ben - Worker's Compensation 108$                                   20$                                      
$38 $38 $46 2.20-415.50-490.00-290-00 Ben - OR W/C Assessment 46$                                     -$                                    

$104,498 $117,521 $113,441 TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICES 184,070$                           70,629$                              
$399 $0 $400 2.20-415.50-490.00-310-00 Pro Svcs - Training & Ed 400$                                   -$                                    

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES - PAYROLL/PERSONNEL

77



$0 $36,000 2.20-415.50-490.00-330-00 Pro Svcs - General 10,000$                             (26,000)$                             
$851 $861 $800 2.20-415.50-490.00-390-00 Bank Fees - PR 800$                                   -$                                    

$2,400 $7,007 $6,044 2.20-415.50-490.00-438-00 Rep & Maint - Software 7,044$                               1,000$                                
$465 $610 $554 2.20-415.50-490.00-521-00 Gen Liab Ins - PR/HR 1,000$                               446$                                    
$406 $783 $1,000 2.20-415.50-490.00-550-00 Copying & Printing 500$                                   (500)$                                  
$284 $0 $500 2.20-415.50-490.00-580-00 Travel - Meals & Lodging 500$                                   -$                                    
$160 $74 $300 2.20-415.50-490.00-582-00 IGS -  Motor Pool 300$                                   -$                                    

$0 $120 2.20-415.50-490.00-586-00 Computer Software 120$                                   -$                                    
$685 $0 $1,000 2.20-415.50-490.00-595-00 Postage 500$                                   (500)$                                  

$2,045 $557 $1,500 2.20-415.50-490.00-600-00 Sup - Office 1,500$                               -$                                    
$450 $685 $200 2.20-415.50-490.00-610-00 Sup - Non-Capital Equipment 200$                                   -$                                    
$158 $184 $150 2.20-415.50-490.00-615-00 Other Materials & Services 150$                                   -$                                    

$8,302 $10,761 $48,568 TOTAL MATERIALS AND SERVICES 23,014$                             (25,554)$                            
$0 $1,319 2.20-415.50-496.00-000-00 Operating Contingency 13,468$                             12,149$                              

$0 $0 $1,319 TOTAL CONTINGENCY 13,468$                             12,149$                              
$112,800 $128,282 $163,328 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 220,552$                           57,224$                              

$8,697 $28,276 $0 ENDING FUND BALANCE -$                                    57,224$                              

78



79



 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 

 

In the Matter of an Ordinance Amending 

Article Two, Division Eight  

 

(Curry County Building Code) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

WHEREAS, the County Building Code must comply with best practices standards and State law; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, since the last amendment to the County Building Code, the County Code 

Enforcement Department has been dissolved and a new position, Code Compliance Officer, 

created; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to maximize effectiveness of the County Code and its enforcement, the 

Curry County Building Code must be updated to include enforcement procedures as well as 

clarifications to remedies for violations of the Code. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEREBY 

ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I  TITLE 

This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 24-02 and may be cited as “Ordinance Amending 

Article Two, Division Eight of County Code – County Building Code.” 

 

SECTION II  AUTHORITY 

This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority of ORS 203.035 and any subsequent 

amendments thereto. 

 

SECTION III  PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend the County Building Code to include enforcement 

procedures and remedies for violations of the Code, as well as other minor administrative revisions 

to the existing Code.  

 

SECTION IV  ADOPTION 

The provisions of this Ordinance and the attached Article Two, Division Eight, incorporated herein 

by reference, are hereby adopted and shall be effective ninety (90) days from the date of this 

Ordinance; and shall remain in force and effect until otherwise ordained by the Board of County 

Commissioners.  

80



 

SECTION V  SEVERANCE CLAUSE 

If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or the attached 

Code, or any part thereof, is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such 

decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. 

The legislative body hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, 

subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any 

provision be declared unconstitutional or otherwise invalid.  

 

SECTION VI   EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall become effective on the 7th day of August, 2024.    

 

 

DATED this 21st day of March, 2024. BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738 

Curry County Legal Counsel 

 

_________________________________________ 

Brad Alcorn, Chair 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

John Herzog, Vice Chair 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Jay Trost, Commissioner 

 

 

 

First Reading:  March 21, 2024  

Second Reading: April 3, 2024   

Effective Date: August 7, 2024  

 

81



CURRY COUNTY BUILDING CODE 

A CODIFICATION OF THE BUILDING DIVISION ORDINANCES OF CURRY 
COUNTY, OREGON 

 
 
 

 
SECTION 2.08.010 

 
TITLE 

ARTICLE TWO, DIVISION EIGHT 

SECTION 2.08.020 

SECTION 2.08.030 

SECTION 2.08.040 

SECTION 2.08.050 

SECTION 2.08.060 

SECTION 2.08.070 

SECTION 2.08.080 

SECTION 2.08.090 

SECTION 2.08.100 

SECTION 2.08.110 

SECTION 2.08.120 

SECTION 2.08.130 

AUTHORITY; PURPOSE 

ADOPTION; SCOPE 

DEFINITIONS 

FEES 

GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BUISING OFFICIAL 

DEPUTIES 

RIGHT OF ENTRY 

STOP WORK ORDERS 

AUTHORITY TO SIDCONNECT UTILITIES IN EMERGENCIES 

CONNECTION AFTER ORDER TO DISCONNECT 

OCCUPANCY VIOLATION 

CODE FOR THE ABATEMENT OF DANGEROUS BUILDINGS 

CHAPTER 1 
 
 

 
CHAPTER 2 

 
 
 
 

 
CHAPTER 3 

TITLE AND SCOPE 

SUB‐SECTION 101 

SUB‐SECTION 102 

SUB‐SECTION 103 

ENFORCEMENT 

SUB‐SECTION 201 

SUB‐SECTION 202 

SUB‐SECTION 203 

SUB‐SECTION 204 

SUB‐SECTION 205 

DEFINITIONS 

SUB‐SECTION 301 

SUB‐SECTION 302 

 
TITLE 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS AND REPAIRS 

 
GENERAL 

ABATEMENT OF DANGEROUS BUILDINGS 

VIOLATIONS 

INSPECTION OF WORK 

BOARD OF APPEALS 

 
GENERAL 

DANGEROUS BUILDING 

CHAPTER 4  NOTICES AND ORDERS OF BUILDING OFFICIAL 
 
 
 

 
CHAPTER 5 

SUB‐SECTION 401 

SUB‐SECTION 402 

SUB‐SECTION 403 

SUB‐SECTION 404 

APPEAL 

SUB‐SECTION 501 

SUB‐SECTION 502 

SUB‐SECTION 503 

SUB‐SECTION 504 

GENERAL 

RECORDATION OF NOTICE AND ORDER 

REPAIR, VACATION AND DEMOLITION 

NOTICE TO VACATE 

 
GENERAL 

EFFECT OF FAILRE TO APPEAL 

SCOPE OF HEARING ON APPEAL 

STAYING OF ORDER UNDER APPEAL 

82



CHAPTER 6  PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCT OF HEARING APPEALS 

SUB‐SECTION 601 

SUB‐SECTION 602 

SUB‐SECTION 603 

SUB‐SECTION 604 

GENERAL 

FORM OF NOTICE OF HEARING 

SUBPOENAS 

CONDUCT OF HEARING 

CHAPTER 7  ENFORCEMENT OF THE ORDER OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL OR THE BOARD OF APPEALS 

SUB‐SECTION 701 

SUB‐SECTION 702 

SUB‐SECTION 703 

COMPLIANCE 

EXTENSION OF TIME TO PERFORM WORK 

INTERFERENCE WITH REPAIR OR DEMOLITION WORK PROHIBITED 

CHAPTER 8  PERFORMANCE OF WORK OF REPAIR OR DEMOLITION 

SUB‐SECTION 801 

SUB‐SECTION 802 

GENERAL 

REPAIR AND DEMOLITION FUND 

CHAPTER 9  RECOVERY OF COST OF REPAIR OR DEMOLITION

SUB‐SECTION 901 

SUB‐SECTION 902 

SUB‐SECTION 903 

SUB‐SECTION 904 

SUB‐SECTION 905 

SUB‐SECTION 906 

SUB‐SECTION 907 

SUB‐SECTION 908 

SUB‐SECTION 909 

SUB‐SECTION 910 

SUB‐SECTION 911 

SUB‐SECTION 912 

ACCOUNT OF EXPENSE, FILING OF REPORT 

NOTICE OF HEARING 

PROTESTS AND OBECTIONS 

HEARING OF PROTESTS 

PERSONAL OBLIGATION OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 

CONTEST 

AUTHORITY FOR INSTALLMENT PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS WITH INTEREST 

LIEN OF ASSESSMENT 

REPORT TO ASSESSOR AND TAX COLLECTOR: ADDITION OF ASSESSMENT TO TAX BILL 

FILING COPY OF REPORT WITH COUNTY AUDITOR 

COLLECION OF ASSESSMENT PENALTIES FOR FORECLOSURE 

REPAYMENT OF REPAIR AND DEMOLITION FUND 

SECTION 2.08.140 

SECTION 2.08.150 

SECTION 2.08.160 

SECTION 2.08.170 

SECTION 2.08.180 

SECTION 2.08.190 

SECTION 2.08.200 

SECTION 2.08.210 

SECTION 2.08.220 

SECTION 2.08.230 

SECTION 2.08.240 

SECTION 2.08.250 

SECTION 2.08.260 

SECTION 2.08.270 

PLANS AND PERMITS 

RETENTION OF PLANS 

VALIDITY OF PLANS 

EXPIRATION OF APPLICATION, PLANS AND PERMITS 

WORK WITHOUT PERMIT; INVESTIGATION FEES 

PERMITS NOT TRANSFERABLE 

SUSPENSION; REVOCATION 

INSPECTIONS 

PUBLIC NUISANCE 

JURISDICTION 

REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE 

Violations – Penalties – Remedies 
AUTHORITY TO IMPOSE ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTY 
UNPAID PENALTIES 

 

83



ARTICLE TWO 

1 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
DIVISION EIGHT CURRY COUNTY BUILDING CODE 

SECTION 2.08.010 TITLE 

These regulations shall be known as the “Curry County Building Code”, may be cited as such and will be 
referred to herein as “this Code” or “the Building Code”. 

SECTION 2.08.020 AUTHORITY; PURPOSE 

1. The Building Code is adopted pursuant to and under the authority of ORS 203.035, 455.150, and 
479.855 and OAR chapter 918, division 308, and constitutes the exercise of authority over a matter 
of county concern. 

2. The Building Code applies to all unincorporated areas within the county and to all areas within the 
corporate limits of any city that has entered into an intergovernmental agreement with the county that 
so provides. 

3. Adoption of the Building Code is necessary for the protection of public health, safety, and welfare. 

SECTION 2.08.030 ADOPTION; SCOPE 

1. The following Oregon Specialty Codes, Oregon Administrative Rules, and standards, are adopted 
and incorporated herein as if fully set forth: 

A. The Oregon Structural Specialty Code, as adopted by and together with OAR chapter 918, 
division 460, including section 116 and the appendices adopted by the state of Oregon 
and specifically adopting Appendices F, H and  all optional items available for local 
adoption. 

B. The Oregon Fire Code, as adopted by ORS 476.060 and OAR Chapter 837 Division 39. 
C. The Oregon Mechanical Specialty Code, as adopted by and together with OAR chapter 

918, division 440. 
D. The Oregon Plumbing Specialty Code, as adopted by and together with OAR chapter 918, 

division 750 thru division 780. 
E. The Oregon Residential Specialty Code and specifically all optional items available for 

local adoption, as adopted by and together with OAR chapter 918, division 480, however 
excluding ORS 455.320 and shall make its provisions to not be applicable withing the 
County 

F. The manufactured dwelling parks and mobile home parks rules, as adopted by and 
together with OAR chapter 918, division 600. 

G. The manufactured dwelling installation rules, as adopted by and together with OAR 
chapter 918, division 500 thru division 520, including the Oregon Manufactured Dwelling 
Standard. 

H. The recreational park and organizational camp rules, as adopted by and together with 
OAR chapter 918, division 650. 

I. International Existing Building Code, specifically including appendix’s A through C. 
2. The Building Code shall apply to the construction, reconstruction, alteration, moving, repair, 

maintenance, and installation of any building or structure except those located in a public way. 

SECTION 2.08.040 DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of the Building Code, the following definitions shall apply: 

1. “Building Official” means the person appointed by the Curry County Board of Commissioners with 
responsibility for administration and enforcement of the state building codes within the county.

84



ARTICLE TWO 

2 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
SECTION 2.08.050 FEES 

1. Fees for permits, inspections, plan checks, site plan review, copy costs, and such other fees that the 
Curry County Board of Commissioners deems reasonable in order to administer the Building Code 
shall be as provided in the Building Division Fee Schedule. 

2. The Building Official may authorize the refund of fees paid in accordance with the refund policy in 
effect. 

3. The determination of value or valuation under any provisions of the Building Code shall be made by 
the Building Official. The value to be used in computing the building permit and plan review fees shall 
be the total value of all construction work for which the permit is issued as well as all finish work, 
painting, roofing, electrical, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, elevators, fire-extinguishing systems 
and any other permanent equipment. 

SECTION 2.08.060 GENERAL POWERS and DUTIES of the BUILDING OFFICIAL 

1. There is hereby established a Building Code enforcement agency which shall be under the 
administrative and operational control of the Building Official. 

2. The Building Official is authorized and directed to enforce all the provisions of the Building Code. For 
such purposes, the Building Official shall have the powers of a law enforcement officer. 

3. The Building Official shall have the power to render written and verbal interpretations of the Building 
Code and to adopt and enforce administrative procedures in order to clarify the application of its 
provisions. Such interpretations, rules, and regulations shall be in conformance with the intent and 
purpose of the Building Code. 

SECTION 2.08.070 DEPUTIES 

The Building Official may appoint deputies, technical officers, inspectors, and other employees to carry 
out the functions of the Building Code enforcement agency. 

SECTION 2.08.080 RIGHT of ENTRY 

When the Building Official deems it desirable or necessary to make an inspection to enforce the 
provisions of the Building Code, or when the Building Official has reasonable cause to believe that there 
exists in a building or upon a premises a condition which is contrary to, or in violation of the Building 
Code; or which otherwise makes the building or premises unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the Building 
Official may enter the building or premises at reasonable times to inspect or to perform the duties imposed 
by the Building Code, provided that if such building or premises be occupied that credentials be presented 
to the occupant and entry requested. If such building or premises are deemed to be unoccupied, the 
Building Official shall first make a reasonable effort to locate the owner or other person having charge or 
control of the building or premises for the purpose of requesting entry. If entry is refused, the Building 
Official shall have recourse to the remedies provided by law to secure entry. 

SECTION 2.08.090 STOP WORK ORDERS 

1. When any work is being performed in violation of this Title, the Building Official may issue a stop work 
order requiring that all work, except work directly related to elimination of the violation, be immediately 
and completely stopped. If the Building Official issues a stop work order, the responsible party may 
not resume work until such time as the Building Official gives specific approval in writing. The stop 
work order will be in writing and will include: 

A. The date that the order is issued; 

85



ARTICLE TWO 

3 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
B. The permit or registration number, where applicable; 
C. The site address, legal description or project location that is subject to the order; 
D. A description of the violations that have been observed; and 
E. The conditions under which the work may resume. 

2. The stop work order will be posted by the Building Official at a conspicuous location at the site. In 
addition, a copy of the order will either be personally delivered to the responsible party or delivered 
by Registered or Certified Mail to the responsible party. If the responsible party is not the property 
owner, a copy of the stop work order will also be sent to the property owner. 

3. It is unlawful for any person to remove, obscure, mutilate or otherwise damage a stop work order. 
4. A stop work order is effective upon posting. 
5. When an emergency condition exists, the Building Official may issue a stop work order orally. The 

Building Official will then issue a written order as provided under Subsection A. above within one 
working day. 

SECTION 2.08.100 AUTHORITY TO DISCONNECT UTILITIES IN EMERGENCIES 

The Building Official shall have the authority to disconnect fuel-gas utility service, or energy supplies to a 
building, structure, premises or equipment regulated by the Building Code when necessary to eliminate an 
immediate hazard to life or property. The Building Official shall, whenever possible, notify the serving 
utility, the owner and occupant of the building, structure or premises of the decision to disconnect prior 
to taking such action, and shall notify such serving utility, owner and occupant of the building, structure 
or premises in writing of such disconnection immediately thereafter. 

SECTION 2.08.110 CONNECTION AFTER ORDER to DISCONNECT 

No person shall make connections from an energy, fuel or power supply, nor supply energy or fuel to any 
equipment regulated by this Code which has been disconnected or ordered to be disconnected by the 
Building Official, or the use of which has been ordered to be discontinued by the Building Official, until 
such time as the Building Official authorizes the reconnection and use of such equipment. 

SECTION 2.08.120 OCCUPANCY VIOLATION 

Whenever any building, structure or equipment therein regulated by the Building Code is being used 
contrary to the provision of this code, the Building Official may order such use discontinued and the 
structure, or portion thereof, vacated by notice served on any person causing such use to be 
discontinued. Such persons shall discontinue the use within the time prescribed by the Building Official 
after receipt of such notice to make the structure, or portion thereof, comply with the requirements of the 
Building Code. 

SECTION 2.08.130 CODE for the ABATEMENT of DANGEROUS BUILDINGS 

1. CURRENTLY ADOPTED EDITION OF THE INTERNATIONAL EXISTING BUILDING CODE. 

Preface.   The provisions of this code were developed to afford jurisdictions reasonable procedures 
for the classification and abatement of dangerous buildings. 

This Code is designed to be compatible with the International Existing Building Code. While the housing 
Code is applicable only to residential buildings, the International Existing Building Code is designed to 
apply to all types of buildings and structures. The notices, orders and appeals procedures specified have 
been found to be workable and are referenced by the Uniform Building Code. 

86



ARTICLE TWO 

4 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
If properly followed, the provisions of this code will provide the Building Official with the proper legal steps 
in abating dilapidated, defective buildings which endanger life, health, property and public safety within 
concepts of fair play and justice. 

2. CODE FOR THE ABATEMENT OF DANGEROUS BUILDINGS. 

CHAPTER 1 
TITLE AND SCOPE 

SECTION 101 — TITLE 

These regulations shall be known as the Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings, may be cited 
as such, and will be referred to herein as “this Code.” 

SECTION 102 — PURPOSE AND SCOPE 

102.1 Purpose. It is the purpose of this Code to provide a just, equitable and practicable method, 
to be cumulative with and in addition to any other remedy provided by the Building Code, Housing Code 
or otherwise available by law, whereby buildings or structures which from any cause endanger the life, 
limb, health, morals, property, safety or welfare of the general public or their occupants may be required 
to be repaired, vacated or demolished. 

The purpose of this Code is not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular class or group 
of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this code. 

102.2 Scope. The provisions of this code shall apply to all dangerous buildings, as herein 
defined, which are now in existence or which may hereafter become dangerous in this jurisdiction. 

SECTION 103 — ALTERATIONS, ADDITIONS AND REPAIRS 

All buildings or structures which are required to be repaired under the provisions of this code shall be 
subject to the provisions of the currently adopted edition of the International Existing Building Code. 

CHAPTER 2 
ENFORCEMENT 

 
SECTION 201 — GENERAL 

201.1 Administration. The Building Official is hereby authorized to enforce the provisions of this 
code. 

The Building Official shall have the power to render interpretations of this code and to adopt and enforce 
rules and supplemental regulations in order to clarify the application of its provisions. Such interpretations, 
rules and regulations shall be in conformity with the intent and purpose of this code. 

201.2 Inspections. The health officer, the fire marshal and the Building Official are hereby 
authorized to make such inspections and take such actions as may be required to enforce the provisions 
of this code. 

201.3 Right of Entry. When it is necessary to make an inspection to enforce the provisions of 
this code, or when the Building Official or the Building Official’s authorized representative has reasonable 
cause to believe that there exists in a building or upon a premises a condition which is contrary to or in 
violation of this code which makes the building or premises unsafe, dangerous or hazardous, the Building 

87



ARTICLE TWO 

5 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
Official may enter the building or premises at reasonable times to inspect or to perform the duties imposed 
by this code, provided that if such building or premises be occupied that credentials be presented to the 
occupant and entry requested. If such building or premises be unoccupied, the Building Official shall first 
make a reasonable effort to locate the owner or other persons having charge or control of the building or 
premises and request entry. If entry is refused, the Building Official shall have recourse to the remedies 
provided by law to secure entry. 

“Authorized representative” shall include the officers named in Section 201.2 and their authorized 
inspection personnel. 

SECTION 202 — ABATEMENT OF DANGEROUS BUILDINGS 

All buildings or portions thereof which are determined after inspection by the Building Official to be 
dangerous as defined in this code are hereby declared to be public nuisances and shall be abated by 
repair, rehabilitation, demolition or removal in accordance with the procedure specified in Section 401 of 
this code. 

SECTION 203 — VIOLATIONS 

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to erect, construct, enlarge, alter, repair, move, 
improve, remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain any building or structure or cause 
or permit the same to be done in violation of this code. 

SECTION 204 — INSPECTION OF WORK 

All buildings or structures within the scope of this code and all construction or work for which a permit is 
required shall be subject to inspection by the Building Official in accordance with and in the manner 
provided by this code and Sections 110 and 1701 of the currently adopted edition of the Oregon Structural 
Specialty Code and Section R109 of the currently adopted edition of the Oregon Residential Specialty 
Code. 

SECTION 205 — BOARD OF APPEALS 

205.1 General. In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions or determinations made by the 
Building Official relative to the application and interpretations of this code, there shall be and is hereby 
created a board of appeals consisting of members who are qualified by experience and training to pass 
upon matters pertaining to building construction and who are not employees of the jurisdiction. The 
Building Official shall be an ex officio member and shall act as secretary to said board but shall have no 
vote upon any matter before the board. The board of appeals shall be appointed by the governing body 
and shall hold office at its pleasure. The board shall adopt rules of procedure for conducting its business 
and shall render all decisions and findings in writing to the appellant, with a duplicate copy to the Building 
Official. Appeals to the board shall be processed in accordance with the provisions contained in Section 
501 of this code. Copies of all rules or regulations adopted by the board shall be delivered to the Building 
Official, who shall make them freely accessible to the public. 

205.2 Limitations of Authority. The board of appeals shall have no authority relative to 
interpretation of the administrative provisions of this code nor shall the board be empowered to waive 
requirements of this code. 

88



ARTICLE TWO 

6 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
CHAPTER 3 

DEFINITIONS 
 

SECTION 301 — GENERAL 

For the purpose of this code, certain terms, phrases, words and their derivatives shall be construed as 
specified in either this chapter or as specified in the Building Code or the Housing Code. Where terms 
are not defined, they shall have their ordinary accepted meanings within the context with which they are 
used. Webster’s Third New International Dictionary of the English Language, Unabridged, copyright 
1986, shall be construed as providing ordinary accepted meanings. Words used in the singular include 
the plural and the plural the singular. Words used in the masculine gender include the feminine and the 
feminine the masculine. 

“Building Code” means the currently adopted edition of the International Existing Building Code, as 
adopted by this jurisdiction. 

“Dangerous Building” meansany building or structure deemed to be dangerous under the provisions of 
Section 302 of this code. 

“Housing Code” means the currently adopted edition of the International Existing Building Code, as 
adopted by this jurisdiction. 

SECTION 302 — DANGEROUS BUILDING 

For the purpose of this Code, any building or structure which has any or all of the conditions or defects 
hereinafter described shall be deemed to be a dangerous building, provided that such conditions or 
defects exist to the extent that the life, health, property or safety of the public or its occupants are 
endangered. 

1. Whenever any door, aisle, passageway, stairway or other means of exit is not of sufficient width 
or size or is not so arranged as to provide safe and adequate means of exit in case of fire or panic. 

2. Whenever the walking surface of any aisle, stairway or other means of exit is so warped, worn, 
loose, torn or otherwise unsafe as to not provide safe and adequate means of exit in case of fire 
or panic. 

3. Whenever the stress in any materials, member or portion thereof, due to all dead and live loads, 
is more than one and one half times the working stress or stresses allowed in the Building Code 
for new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location. 

4. Whenever any portion thereof has been damaged by fire, earthquake, wind, flood or by any other 
cause, to such an extent that the structural strength or stability thereof is materially less than it 
was before such catastrophe and is less than the minimum requirements of the Building Code for 
new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location. 

5. Whenever any portion or member or appurtenance thereof likely to fail, or to become detached 
or dislodged, or to collapse and hereby injure persons or damage property. 

6. Whenever any portion of a building, or any member, appurtenance or ornamentation on the 
exterior thereof is not of sufficient strength or stability, or is not so anchored, attached or fastened 
in place so as to be capable of resisting a wind pressure of one half of that specified in the Building 
Code for new buildings of similar structure, purpose or location without exceeding the work 
stresses permitted in the Building Code for such buildings. 

89



ARTICLE TWO 

7 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
7. Whenever any portion thereof has wracked, warped, buckled or settled to such an extent that 

walls or other structural portions have materially less resistance to winds or earthquakes than is 
required in the case of similar new construction. 

8. Whenever the building or structure, or any portion thereof, because of (i) dilapidation, deterioration 
or decay; (ii) faulty construction; (iii) the removal, movement or instability of any portion of the 
ground necessary for the purpose of supporting such building; (iv) the deterioration, decay or 
inadequacy of its foundation; or (v) any other cause, is likely to partially or completely collapse. 

9. Whenever, for any reason, the building or structure, or portion thereof, is manifestly unsafe for the 
purpose for which it is being used. 

10. Whenever the exterior walls or other vertical structural members list, lean or buckle to such an 
extent that a plumb line passing through the center of gravity does not fall inside the middle one 
third of the base. 

11. Whenever the building or structure, exclusive of the foundation, shows 33 percent or more 
damage or deterioration of its supporting member or members, or 50 percent damage or 
deterioration of its nonsupporting members, enclosing or outside walls or coverings. 

12. Whenever the building or structure has been so damaged by fire, wind, earthquake or flood, or 
has become so dilapidated or deteriorated as to become (i) an attractive nuisance to children; (ii) 
a harbor for vagrants, criminals or immoral persons; or as to (iii) enable persons to resort thereto 
for the purpose of committing unlawful or immoral acts. 

13. Whenever any building or structure has been constructed, exists or is maintained in violation of 
any specific requirement or prohibition applicable to such building or structure provided by the 
building regulations of this jurisdiction, as specified in the Building Code or Housing Code, or of 
any law or ordinance of this state or jurisdiction relating to the condition, location or structure of 
buildings. 

14. Whenever any building or structure which, whether or not erected in accordance with all applicable 
laws and ordinances, has in any nonsupporting part, member or portion less than 50 percent, or 
in any supporting part, member or portion less than 66 percent of the (i) strength, (ii) fire-resisting 
qualities or characteristics, or (iii) weather-resisting qualities or characteristics required by law in 
the case of a newly constructed building of like area, height and occupancy in the same location. 

15. Whenever a building or structure, used or intended to be used for dwelling purposes, because of 
inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, decay, damage, faulty construction or arrangement, 
inadequate light, air or sanitation facilities, or otherwise, is determined by the health officer to be 
unsanitary, unfit for human habitation or in such a condition that is likely to cause sickness or 
disease. 

16. Whenever any building or structure, because of obsolescence, dilapidated condition, 
deterioration, damage, inadequate exits, lack of sufficient fire-resistant construction, faulty electric 
wiring, gas connections or heating apparatus, or other cause, is determined by the fire marshal 
to be a fire hazard. 

17. Whenever any building or structure is in such a condition as to constitute a public nuisance known 
to common law or in equity jurisprudence. 

18. Whenever any portion of a building or structure remains on a site after the demolition or 
destruction of the building or structure or whenever any building or structure is abandoned for a 
period in excess of six months so as to constitute such building or portion thereof an attractive 
nuisance or hazard to the public. 

90



ARTICLE TWO 

8 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
CHAPTER 4 

NOTICES AND ORDERS OF BUILDING OFFICIAL 
 

SECTION 401 — GENERAL 

401.1 Commencement of Proceedings. When the Building Official has inspected or caused to 
be inspected any building and has found and determined that such building is dangerous building, the 
Building Official shall commence proceedings to cause the repair, vacation or demolition of the building. 

401.2 Notice and Order. The Building Official shall issue a notice and order directed to the 
record owner of the building. The notice and order shall contain: 

1. The street address and a legal description sufficient for identification of the premises upon which the 
building is located. 

2. A statement that the Building Official has found the building to be dangerous with a brief and concise 
description of the conditions found to render the building dangerous under the provisions of Section 
302 of this code. 

3. A statement of the action required to be taken as determined by the Building Official as follows: 
3.1 If the Building Official has determined that the building or structure must be repaired, the order 

shall require that all required permits be secured therefor and the work physically commenced 
within such time (not to exceed 60 days from the date of the order) and completed within such 
time as the Building Official shall determine is reasonable under all of the circumstances. 

3.2 If the Building Official has determined that the building or structure must be vacated, the order 
shall require that the building or structure shall be vacated within a time certain from the date 
of the order as determined by the Building Official to be reasonable. 

3.3 If the Building Official has determined that the building or structure must be demolished, the 
order shall require that the building be vacated within such time as the Building Official shall 
determine is reasonable (not to exceed 60 days from the date of the order); that all required 
permits be secured therefor within 60 days from the date of the order; and that the demolition 
be completed within such time as the Building Official shall determine is reasonable. 

4. Statements advising that if any required repair or demolition work (without vacation also being 
required) is not commenced within the time specified, the Building Official (i) will order the building 
vacated and posted to prevent further occupancy until the work is completed, and (ii) may proceed to 
cause the work to be done and charge the costs thereof against the property or its owner. 

5. Statements advising (i) that any person having any record title or legal interest in the building may 
appeal from the notice and order or any action of the Building Official to the board of appeals, provided 
the appeal is made in writing as provided in this code and filed with the Building Official within 30 days 
from the date of service of such notice and order; and (ii) that failure to appeal will constitute a waiver 
of all right to an administrative hearing and determination of the matter. 

401.3 Service of Notice and Order. The notice and order, and any amended or supplemental 
notice and order, shall be served upon the record owner and posted on the property; and one copy thereof 
shall be served on each of the following if known to the Building Official or disclosed from official public 
records: the holder of any mortgage or deed of trust or other lien or encumbrance of record; the owner or 
holder of any lease of record; and the holder of any other estate or legal interest of record in or to the 
building or the land on which it is located. The failure of the Building Official to serve any person required 
herein to be served shall not invalidate any proceedings hereunder as to any other person duly served 
or relieve any such person from any duty or obligation imposed by the provisions of this section. 

91



ARTICLE TWO 

9 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
401.4 Method of Service. Service of the notice and order shall be made upon all persons 
entitled thereto either personally or by mailing a copy of such notice and order by certified mail, postage 
prepaid, return receipt requested, to each such person at their address as it appears on the last equalized 
assessment roll of the county or as known to the Building Official. If no address of any such person so 
appears or is known to the Building Official, then a copy of the notice and order shall be so mailed, 
addressed to such person, at the address of the building involved in the proceedings. The failure of any 
such person to receive such notice shall not affect the validity of any proceedings taken under this section. 
Service by certified mail in the manner herein provided shall be effective on the date of mailing. 

401.5 Proof of Service. Proof of service of the notice and order shall be certified to at the time 
of service by a written declaration under penalty of perjury executed by the persons effecting service, 
declaring the time, date and manner in which service was made. The declaration, together with any 
receipt card returned in acknowledgment of receipt by certified mail shall be affixed to the copy of the 
notice and order retained by the Building Official. 

SECTION 402 — RECORDATION OF NOTICE AND ORDER 

If compliance is not had with the order within the time specified therein, and no appeal has been properly 
and timely filed, the Building Official shall file in the office of the county recorder a certificate describing 
the property and certifying (i) that the building is a dangerous building and (ii) that the owner has been so 
notified. Whenever the corrections ordered shall thereafter have been completed or the building 
demolished so that it no longer exists as a dangerous building on the property described in the certificate, 
the Building Official shall file a new certificate with the county recorder certifying that the building has 
been demolished or all required corrections have been made so that the building is no longer dangerous, 
whichever is appropriate. 

SECTION 403 — REPAIR, VACATION AND DEMOLITION 

The following standards shall be followed by the Building Official (and by the board of appeals if an appeal 
is taken) in ordering the repair, vacation or demolition or any dangerous building or structure: 

1. Any building declared a dangerous building under this code shall be made to comply with one 
of the following: 

1.1 The building shall be repaired in accordance with the current Building Code or other 
current code applicable to the type of substandard conditions requiring repair; or 

1.2 The building shall be demolished at the option of the building owner; or 
1.3 If the building does not constitute an immediate danger to the life, limb, property or 

safety of the public it may be vacated, secured and maintained against entry. 
2. If the building or structure is in such condition as to render it immediately dangerous to the 

life, limb, property or safety of the public or its occupants, it shall be ordered to be vacated. 

SECTION 404 — NOTICE TO VACATE 

404.1 Posting. Every notice to vacate shall, in addition to being served as provided in Section 
401.3, be posted at or upon each exit of the building and shall be in substantially the following form: 

DO NOT ENTER 

UNSAFE TO OCCUPY 

It is a misdemeanor to occupy this building, or to remove or deface this notice. 

92



ARTICLE TWO 

10 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
Building Official 

……of…… 

404.2 Compliance. Whenever such notice is posted, the Building Official shall include a 
notification thereof in the notice and order issued under Section 401.2, reciting the emergency and 
specifying the conditions which necessitate the posting. No person shall remain or enter any building 
which has been so posted, except that entry may be made to repair, demolish, or remove such building 
under permit. No person shall remove or deface any such notice after it is posted until the required repairs, 
demolition or removal have been completed and a certificate of occupancy issued pursuant to the 
provisions of the Building Code. 

CHAPTER 5 
APPEAL 

 
501.1 Form of Appeal. Any person entitled to service under Section 401.3 may appeal from any 
notice and order or any action of the Building Official under this code by filing at the office of the Building 
Official a written appeal containing: 

1. A heading in the words: “Before the board of appeals of the ……. of ............ ” 
2. A caption reading: “Appeal of …..,” giving the names of all appellants participating in the 

appeal. 
3. A brief statement setting forth the legal interest of each of the appellants in the building or 

the land involved in the notice and order. 
4. A brief statement in ordinary and concise language of the specific order or action protested, 

together with any material facts claimed to support the contentions of the appellant. 
5. A brief statement in ordinary and concise language of the relief sought and the reasons why 

it is claimed the protested order or action should be reversed, modified or otherwise set aside. 
6. The signatures of all parties named as appellants and their official mailing addresses. 
7. The verification (by declaration under penalty of perjury) of at least one appellant as to the 

truth of the matters stated in the appeal. 

The appeal shall be filed within 30 days from the date of the service of such order or action of the Building 
Official; provided, however, that if the building or structure is in such condition as to make it immediately 
dangerous to the life, limb, property or safety of the public or adjacent property and is ordered vacated 
and is posted in accordance with Section 404, such appeal shall be filed within 10 days from the date of 
the service of the notice and order of the Building Official. 

501.2 Processing of Appeal. Upon receipt of any appeal filed pursuant to this section, the 
Building Official shall present it at the next regular or special meeting of the board of appeals. 

501.3 Scheduling and Noticing Appeal for Hearing. As soon as practicable after receiving the 
written appeal, the board of appeals shall fix a date, time and place for the hearing of the appeal by the 
board. Such date shall not be less than 10 days nor more than 60 days from the date the appeal was 
filed with the Building Official. Written notice of the time and place of the hearing shall be given at least 
10 days prior to the date of the hearing to each appellant by the secretary of the board either by causing 
a copy of such notice to be delivered to the appellant personally or by mailing a copy thereof, postage 
prepaid, addressed to the appellant at the address shown on the appeal. 

SECTION 502 — EFFECT OF FAILURE TO APPEAL 

93



ARTICLE TWO 

11 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
Failure of any person to file an appeal in accordance with the provisions of Section 501 shall constitute 
a waiver of the right to an administrative hearing and adjudication of the notice and order or any portion 
thereof. 

SECTION 503 — SCOPE OF HEARING ON APPEAL 

Only those matters or issues specifically raised by the appellant shall be considered in the hearing of the 
appeal. 

SECTION 504 — STAYING OF ORDER UNDER APPEAL 

Except for vacation orders made pursuant to Section 404, enforcement of any notice and order of the 
Building Official issued under this code shall be stayed during the pendency of an appeal therefrom which 
is properly and timely filed. 

CHAPTER 6 
PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCT OF HEARING APPEALS 

 
SECTION 601 — GENERAL 

601.1 Hearing Examiners. The board may appoint one or more hearing examiners or designate 
one or more of its members to serve as hearing examiners to conduct the hearings. The examiner hearing 
the case shall exercise all powers relating to the conduct of hearings until it is submitted to the board for 
decision. 

601.2 Record. A record of the entire proceedings shall be made by tape recording or by any 
other means of permanent recording determined to be appropriate by the board. 

601.3 Reporting. The proceedings at the hearing shall also be reported by a phonographic 
reporter if requested by any party thereto. A transcript of the proceedings shall be made available to all 
parties upon request and upon payment of the fee prescribed therefor. Such fees may be established by 
the board, but shall in no event be greater than the cost involved. 

601.4 Continuances. The board may grant continuances for good cause shown; however, 
when a hearing examiner has been assigned to such hearing, no continuances may be granted except 
by the examiner for good cause shown so long as the matter remains before the examiner. 

601.5 Oaths – Certification. In any proceedings under this chapter, the board, any board 
member, or the hearing examiner has the power to administer oaths and affirmations and to certify to 
official acts. 

601.6 Reasonable Dispatch. The board and its representatives shall proceed with reasonable 
dispatch to conclude any matter before it. Due regard shall be shown for the convenience and necessity 
of any parties or their representatives. 

SECTION 602 — FORM OF NOTICE OF HEARING 

The notice to appellant shall be substantially in the following form, but may include other information: 

“You are hereby notified that a hearing will be held before (the board of 
appeals or name of hearing examiner) at [location] on [date + time] upon 
the notice and order served upon you. You may be present at the hearing. 
You may be, but need not be, represented by counsel. You may present 

94



ARTICLE TWO 

12 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
any relevant evidence and will be given full opportunity to cross-examine 
all witnesses testifying against you. You may request the issuance of 
subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of 
books, documents or other things by filing an affidavit therefor with (board 
of appeals or name of hearing examiner).” 

SECTION 603 — SUBPOENAS 

603.1 Filing of Affidavit. The board or examiners may obtain the issuance and service of a 
subpoena for the attendance of witnesses or the production of other evidence at a hearing upon the 
request of a member of the board or upon the written demand of any party. The issuance and service of 
such subpoena shall be obtained upon the filing of an affidavit therefor which states the name and 
address of the proposed witness; specifies the exact things sought to be produced and the materiality 
thereof in detail to the issues involved; and states that the witness has the desired things in possession 
or under control. A subpoena need not be issued when the affidavit is defective in any particular aspect. 

603.2 Cases Referred to Examiner. In cases where a hearing is referred to an examiner, all 
subpoenas shall be obtained through the examiner. 

603.3 Penalties. Any person who refuses without lawful excuse to attend any hearing or to 
produce material evidence which the person possesses or controls as required by any subpoena served 
upon such person as provided for herein shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

SECTION 604 — CONDUCT OF HEARING 

604.1 Rules. Hearings need not be conducted according to the technical rules relating to 
evidence and witnesses. 

604.2 Oral Evidence. Oral evidence shall be taken only on oath or affirmation. 

604.3 Hearsay Evidence. Hearsay evidence may be used for the purpose of supplementing or 
explaining any direct evidence, but shall not be sufficient in itself to support a finding unless it would be 
admissible over objection in civil actions in courts of competent jurisdiction in this state. 

604.4 Admissibility of Evidence. Any relevant evidence shall be admitted if it is the type of 
evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs, 
regardless of the existence of any common law or statutory rule which might make improper the 
admission of such evidence over objection in civil actions in courts of competent jurisdiction in this state. 

604.5 Exclusion of Evidence. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence shall be excluded. 

604.6 Rights of Parties. Each party shall have these rights, among others: 

1. To call and examine witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues of the hearing; 
2. To introduce documentary and physical evidence; 
3. To cross-examine opposing witnesses on any matter relevant to the issues of the hearing; 
4. To impeach any witness regardless of which party first called the witness to testify; 
5. To rebut the evidence; and 
6. To be represented by anyone who is lawfully permitted to do so. 

604.7 Official Notice. 

95



ARTICLE TWO 

13 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
604.7.1 What may be noticed. In reaching a decision, official notice may be taken, either before 
or after submission of the case for decision, of any fact which may be judicially noticed by the courts of 
this state or of official records of the board or departments and ordinances of the city or rules and 
regulations of the board. 

604.7.2 Parties to be notified. Parties present at the hearing informed of the matters to be 
noticed, and these matters noted in the record, referred to therein, or appended thereto. 

CHAPTER 7 
ENFORCEMENT OF THE ORDER OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL 

OR THE BOARD OF APPEALS 
 

SECTION 701 — COMPLIANCE 

701.1 General. After any order of the Building Official or the board of appeals made pursuant to 
this code shall have become final, no person to whom any such order is directed shall fail, neglect or 
refuse to obey any such order. Any such person who fails to comply with any such order is guilty of a 
misdemeanor. 

701.2 Failure to Obey Order. If, after any order of the Building Official or board of appeals made 
pursuant to this code has become final, the person to whom such order is directed shall fail, neglect or 
refuse to obey such order, the Building Official may (i) cause such person to be prosecuted under Section 
701.1 or (ii) institute any appropriate action to abate such building as a public nuisance. 

701.3 Failure to Commence Work. Whenever the required repair or demolition is not 
commenced within 30 days after any final notice and order issued under this code becomes effective: 

1. The Building Official shall cause the building described in such notice and order to be vacated by 
posting at each entrance thereto a notice reading: 

DANGEROUS BUILDING 

DO NOT OCCUPY 

It is a misdemeanor to occupy this building, or to remove or deface this notice. 

Building Official 

……of…… 

2. No person shall occupy any building which has been posted as specified in this section. No person 
shall remove or deface any such notice so posted until the repairs, demolition or removal ordered 
by the Building Official have been completed and a certificate of occupancy issued pursuant to the 
provisions of the Building Code. 

3. The Building Official may, in addition to any other remedy herein provided, cause the building to 
be repaired to the extent necessary to correct the conditions which render the building dangerous 
as set forth in the notice and order; or, if the notice and order required demolition, to cause the 
building to be sold and demolished or demolished and the materials, rubble and debris therefrom 
removed and the lot cleaned. Any such repair or demolition work shall be accomplished and the 
cost thereof paid and recovered in the manner hereinafter provided in this code. Any surplus 
realized from the sale of any such building, or from the demolition thereof, over and above the cost 

96



ARTICLE TWO 

14 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
of demolition and of cleaning the lot, shall be paid over to the person or persons lawfully entitled 
thereto. 

SECTION 702 — EXTENSION OF TIME TO PERFORM WORK 

Upon receipt of an application from the person required to conform to the order and by agreement of 
such person to comply with the order if allowed additional time, the Building Official may grant an 
extension of time, not to exceed an additional 120 days, within which to complete said repair, 
rehabilitation or demolition, if the Building Official determines that such an extension of time will not create 
or perpetuate a situation imminently dangerous to life or property. The Building Official’s authority to 
extend time is limited to the physical repair, rehabilitation or demolition of the premises and will not in any 
way affect the time to appeal the notice and order. 

SECTION 703 — INTERFERENCE WITH REPAIR OR DEMOLITION WORK PROHIBITED 

No person shall obstruct, impede or interfere with any officer, employee, contractor or authorized 
representative of this jurisdiction or with any person who owns or holds any estate or interest in any 
building which has been ordered repaired, vacated or demolished under the provisions of this code; or 
with any person to whom such building has been lawfully sold pursuant to the provisions of this code, 
whenever such officer, employee, contractor or authorized representative of this jurisdiction, person 
having an interest or estate in such building or structure, or purchaser is engaged in the work of repairing, 
vacating and repairing, or demolishing any such building, pursuant to the provisions of this code, or in 
performing any necessary act preliminary to or incidental to such work or authorized or directed pursuant 
to this code. 

CHAPTER 8 
PERFORMANCE OF WORK OF REPAIR OR DEMOLITION 

 
SECTION 801 — GENERAL 

801.1 Procedure. When any work of repair or demolition is to be done pursuant to Section 701.3, 
Item 3, of this code, the Building Official shall, issue an order therefor to a private contract under the 
direction of the Building Official and the work shall be accomplished. Plans and specifications therefor may 
be prepared by said Building Official, or may employ such architectural and engineering assistance on a 
contract basis as deemed reasonably necessary. If any part of the work is to be accomplished by private 
contract, standard contractual procedures shall be followed. 

801.2 Costs. The cost of such work shall be paid from the repair and demolition fund, and may 
be made a special assessment against the property involved, or may be made a personal obligation of 
the property owner, whichever the legislative body of this jurisdiction shall determine is appropriate. 

SECTION 802 — REPAIR AND DEMOLITION FUND 

802.1 General. The legislative body of this jurisdiction shall establish a special revolving fund to 
be designated as the repair and demolition fund. Payments shall be made out of said fund upon the 
demand of the Building Official to defray the costs and expenses which may be incurred by this jurisdiction 
in doing or causing to be done the necessary work of repair or demolition of dangerous buildings. 

802.2 Maintenance of Fund. The legislative body may at any time transfer to the repair and 
demolition fund, out of any money in the general fund of this jurisdiction, such sums as it may deem 
necessary in order to expedite the performance of the work of repair or demolition, and any sum so 

97



ARTICLE TWO 

15 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
transferred shall be deemed a loan to the repair and demolition fund and shall be repaid out of the 
proceeds of the collections hereinafter provided for. All funds collected under the proceedings hereinafter 
provided for shall be paid to the treasurer of this jurisdiction who shall credit the same to the repair and 
demolition fund. 

CHAPTER 9 
RECOVERY OF COST OF REPAIR OR DEMOLITION 

 
SECTION 901 — ACCOUNT OF EXPENSE, FILING OF REPORT 

The Building Official shall keep an itemized account of the expense incurred by this jurisdiction in the 
repair or demolition of any building done pursuant to the provisions of Section 701.3, Item 3, of this code. 
Upon the completion of the work of repair or demolition, said official shall prepare and file with the admin 
assistant to the Community Development Department of this jurisdiction a report specifying the work 
done, the itemized and total cost of the work, a description of the real property upon which the building 
or structure is or was located, and the names and addresses of the persons entitled to notice pursuant 
to Section 401.3. 

SECTION 902 — NOTICE OF HEARING 

The Building Official shall also present the completed report to the legislative body of this jurisdiction for 
consideration. The legislative body of this jurisdiction shall fix a time, date and place for hearing said 
report and any protests or objections thereto. The Building Official of this jurisdiction shall cause notice 
of said hearing to be posted upon the property involved, published once in a newspaper of general 
circulation in this jurisdiction, and served by certified mail, postage prepaid, addressed to the owner of 
the property as the owner’s name and address appears on the last equalized assessment roll of the 
county, if such so appears, or as known to the official. Such notice shall be given at least 10 days prior 
to the date set for the hearing and shall specify the day, hour and place when the legislative body will 
hear and pass upon the official’s report, together with any objections or protests which may be filed as 
hereinafter provided by any person interested in or affected by the proposed charge. 

SECTION 903 — PROTESTS AND OBJECTIONS 

Any person interested in or affected by the proposed charge may file written protests or objections with 
the administrative assistant to the Community Development Department of this jurisdiction at any time 
prior to the time set for the hearing on the report of the official. Each such protest or objection must 
contain a description of the property in which the signer thereof is interested and the grounds of such 
protest or objection. The administrative assistant to the Community Development of this jurisdiction shall 
endorse on every such protest or objection the date of receipt. The Building Official shall present such 
protests or objections to the legislative body of this jurisdiction at the time set for the hearing, and no 
other protests or objections shall be considered. 

SECTION 904 — HEARING OF PROTESTS 

Upon the day and hour fixed for the hearing, the legislative body of this jurisdiction shall hear and pass 
upon the report of the official together with any such objections or protests. The legislative body may 
make such revision, correction or modification in the report or the charge as it may deem just; and when 
the legislative body is satisfied with the correctness of the charge, the report (as submitted or as revised, 
corrected or modified) together with the charge, shall be confirmed or rejected. The decision of the 

98



ARTICLE TWO 

16 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
legislative body of this jurisdiction on the report and the charge, and on all protests or objections, shall 
be final and conclusive. 

SECTION 905 — PERSONAL OBLIGATION OR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 

905.1 General. The legislative body of this jurisdiction may thereupon order that said charge 
shall be made a personal obligation of the property owner or assess said charge against the property 
involved. 

905.2 Personal Obligation. If the legislative body of this jurisdiction orders that the charge shall 
be a personal obligation of the property owner, it shall direct the attorney for this jurisdiction to collect the 
same on behalf of this jurisdiction by use of all appropriate legal remedies. 

905.3 Special Assessment. If the legislative body of this jurisdiction orders that the charge shall 
be assessed against the property, it shall confirm the assessment, cause the same to be recorded on the 
assessment roll, and thereafter said assessment shall constitute a special assessment against and a lien 
upon the property. 

SECTION 906 — CONTEST 

The validity of any assessment made under the provisions of this chapter shall not be contested in any 
action or proceeding unless the same is commenced within 30 days after the assessment is placed upon 
the assessment roll as provided herein. Any appeal from a final judgment in such action or proceeding 
must be perfected within 30 days after the entry of such judgment. 

SECTION 907 — AUTHORITY FOR INSTALLMENT PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS WITH INTEREST 

The legislative body of this jurisdiction, in its discretion, may determine that assessments in amounts of 
$500.00 or more shall be payable in not to exceed five equal monthly installments. The legislative body’s 
determination to allow payment of such assessments in installments, the number of installments, whether 
they shall bear interest, and the rate thereof shall be by a resolution adopted prior to the confirmation of 
the assessment. 

SECTION 908 — LIEN OF ASSESSMENT 

908.1 Priority. Immediately upon its being placed on the assessment roll, the assessment shall 
be deemed to be complete, the several amounts assessed shall be payable, and the assessments shall 
be liens against the lots or parcels of land assessed, respectively. The lien shall be subordinate to all 
existing special assessment liens previously imposed upon the same property and shall be paramount 
to all other liens except for state, county and property taxes with which it shall be upon a parity. The lien 
shall continue until the assessment and all interest due and payable thereon are paid. 

908.2 Interest. All such assessments remaining unpaid after 30 days from the date of recording 
on the assessment roll shall become delinquent and shall bear interest at the rate of 7 percent per annum 
from and after said date. 

SECTION 909 — REPORT TO ASSESSOR AND TAX COLLECTOR: ADDITION OF ASSESSMENT 
TO TAX BILL 

After confirmation of the report, certified copies of the assessment shall be given to the assessor and the 
tax collector for this jurisdiction, who shall add the amount of the assessment to the next regular tax bill 
levied against the parcel for municipal purposes. 

99



ARTICLE TWO 

17 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
SECTION 910 — FILING COPY OF REPORT WITH COUNTY AUDITOR 

If the county assessor and the county tax collector assess property and collect taxes for this jurisdiction, 
a certified copy of the assessment shall be filed with the county auditor on or before August 10th. The 
descriptions of the parcels reported shall be those used for the same parcels on the county assessor’s 
map books for the current year. 

SECTION 911 — COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENT PENALTIES FOR FORECLOSURE 

The amount of the assessment shall be collected at the same time and in the same manner as ordinary 
property taxes are collected and shall be subject to the same penalties and procedure and sale in case 
of delinquency as provided for ordinary property taxes. All laws applicable to the levy, collection and 
enforcement of property taxes shall be applicable to such assessment. 

If the legislative body of this jurisdiction has determined that the assessment shall be paid in installments, 
each installment and any interest thereon shall be collected in the same manner as ordinary property 
taxes in successive years. If any installment is delinquent, the amount thereof is subject to the same 
penalties and procedure for sale as provided for ordinary property taxes. 

SECTION 912 — REPAYMENT OF REPAIR AND DEMOLITION FUND 

All money recovered by payment of the charge or assessment or from the sale of the property at 
foreclosure sale shall be paid to the treasurer of this jurisdiction, who shall credit the same to the repair 
and demolition fund. 

SECTION 2.08.140 PLANS and PERMITS 

1. The application, plans, specifications, computations and other data filed by an applicant for a permit 
shall be reviewed by the Building Official. Such plans may be reviewed by other departments of this 
jurisdiction to verify compliance with any applicable laws under their jurisdiction. If the Building Official 
finds that the work described in application for a permit and the plans, specifications and other data 
filed therewith conform to the requirements of the Building Code and other pertinent laws and 
ordinances, and that the fees have been paid, the Building Official shall issue a permit therefore to 
the applicant. 

2. When the Building Official issues the permit where plans are required, the Building Official shall 
endorse in writing or stamp the plans and specifications. Such approved plans and specifications 
shall not be changed, modified and altered without authorizations from the Building Official, and all 
work regulated by the Building Code shall be done in accordance with the approved plans. 

3. The Building Official may issue a permit for the construction of part of a building or structure before 
the entire plans and specifications for the whole building or structure have been submitted or 
approved, provided adequate information and detailed statements have been filed complying with all 
pertinent requirements of the Building Code. The holder of a partial permit shall proceed without 
assurance that the permit for the entire building or structure will be granted. 

SECTION 2.08.150 RETENTION of PLANS 

One set of approved plans, specifications and computations shall be retained by the Building Official for 
a period of not less than 90 days from the date of completion of the work covered therein and one set of 
approved plans and specifications shall be returned to the applicant, and the returned set shall be kept 
on the site of the building or work at all times during which the work authorized thereby is in progress. 

100



ARTICLE TWO 

18 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
SECTION 2.08.160 VALIDITY of PLANS 

1. No permit shall be issued if the parcel of land or the use of the land on which the building, structure, 
or equipment is to be placed, erected, altered, equipped or used is in violation of any Curry County 
ordinance or code. 

2. The issuance or granting of a permit or approval of plans, specification and computations shall not be 
construed to be a permit for, or an approval of, any violation of any of the provisions of the Building 
Code or of any other Curry County ordinance or code. Permits presuming to give authority to violate 
or cancel the provisions of the Building Code or other Curry County ordinance or code shall not be 
valid. 

3. The issuance of a permit based on plans, specifications and other data shall not prevent the Building 
Official from thereafter requiring the correction of errors in the plans, specifications and other data, or 
from preventing building operations being carried on thereunder when in violation of the Building Code 
or of any other Curry County ordinance or code. 

SECTION 2.08.170 EXPIRATION of APPLICATTIONS, PLANS and PERMITS 

1. Applications for which no permit is issued within 180 days following the date of the application shall 
expire by limitation, and plans and other data submitted for review may thereafter be returned to the 
applicant or destroyed by the Building Official. The Building Official may extend the time for action by 
the applicant for a period not exceeding 180 days on request by the applicant showing that 
circumstances beyond the control of the applicant have prevented action from being taken. No 
application shall be extended more than once. In order to renew action on an application after 
expiration, the applicant shall resubmit plans and pay a new plan review fee. 

2. Every permit issued by the Building Official under the provisions of the Building Code shall expire by 
limitation and become null and void if the building or work authorized by such permit is not 
commenced within 180 days from the date of such permit, or if the building or work authorized by 
such permit is suspended or abandoned at any time after the work is commenced for a period of 180 
days. Before such work can be recommenced, a new permit shall be first obtained to do so, and the 
fee therefore shall be one half the amount required for a new permit for such work, provided no 
changes have been made or will be made in the original plans and specifications for such work and 
provided further that such suspension or abandonment has not exceeded one year. In order to renew 
action on a permit after expiration, the permittee shall pay a new full permit fee. 

3. Any permittee holding an unexpired permit may apply for an extension of the time within which work 
may commence under that permit when the permittee is unable to commence work within the time 
required by this section for good and satisfactory reasons. The Building Official may extend the time 
for action by the permittee for a period not exceeding 180 days on written request by the permittee 
showing that circumstances beyond the control of the permittee have prevented action from being 
taken. No permit shall be extended without justifiable cause demonstrated in writing. 

SECTION 2.08.180 WORK WITHOUT PERMIT; INVESTIGATION FEES 

1. Whenever any work for which a permit is required by the Building Code has been commenced without 
first obtaining said permit, a special investigation shall be made before a permit may be issued for 
such work. 

2. An investigation fee, in addition to the permit fee, may be collected whether or not a permit is then or 
subsequently issued. The payment of such investigation fee shall not exempt any person from 
compliance with all other provisions of the Building Code nor from any penalty prescribed by law. 

101



ARTICLE TWO 

19 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

 
SECTION 2.08.190 PERMITS NOT TRANSFERABLE 

A permit issued to one person or firm is not transferable and shall not permit any other person or firm to 
perform any work thereunder. 

SECTION 2.08.200 SUSPENSION; REVOCATION 

The Building Official may, in writing, suspend or revoke a permit issued under the provisions of the 
Building Code whenever the permit is issued in error on the basis of incorrect information supplied, or in 
violation of any provision of the Building Code. 

SECTION 2.08.210 INSPECTIONS 

1. It shall be the duty of the permit holder or the permit holder's agent to request all necessary 
inspections in a timely manner, provide access to the site, and provide all necessary equipment as 
determined by the Building Official. The permit holder shall not proceed with the building construction 
until authorized by the Building Official. It shall be the duty of the permit holder to cause the work to 
remain accessible and exposed for inspection purposes. Any expense incurred by the permit holder 
to remove or replace any material required for proper installation shall be the responsibility of the 
permit holder or the permit holder's agent. 

2. Work requiring a permit shall not be commenced until the permit holder or the permit holder's agent 
has posted or otherwise made available a inspection record card such as to allow the Building Official 
to conveniently make the required entries thereon regarding inspection of the work. This card shall 
be maintained available by the permit holder until final approval has been granted by the Building 
Official. 

SECTION 2.08.220 PUBLIC NUISANCE 

The erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, maintenance, installation or use of any building, 
structure, manufactured dwelling, or mobile home in violation of the Building Code shall be deemed a 
nuisance and may be enjoined, abated or removed. 

SECTION 2.08.230 JURISDICTION 

The Circuit Court for the State of Oregon for the County of Curry has jurisdiction over any and all violations 
of the Building Code. 

SECTION 2.08.240 REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE 

None of the remedies available to the County as set forth in the Building Code are exclusive. Nothing in 
the Building Code shall preclude any remedy otherwise available to the County, either in law or equity. 

2.08.250 Violations – Penalties – Remedies. 

A.   No person, firm, corporation or other entity however organized shall erect, construct, enlarge, alter, 
repair, move, improve, remove, convert or demolish, equip, use, occupy or maintain a building or 
structure in the county, or cause the same to be done, contrary to or in violation of this code. 

B.   Violation of a provision of this chapter shall be subject to an administrative civil penalty not to exceed 
the amounts shown in the Curry County Fee Schedule and shall be processed in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in this code. 

C.   Each day that a violation of a provision of this chapter exists constitutes a separate violation. 

102



ARTICLE TWO 

20 Revised 11/03/2021 

 

 

D.   A property owner had been cited for previously within a 12-month period.  

E.   In addition to the above penalties, a condition caused or permitted to exist in violation of this chapter is 
a public nuisance and may be abated by any of the procedures set forth under law. 

F.   The penalties and remedies provided in this section are not exclusive and are in addition to other 
penalties and remedies available to the county under any ordinance, statute or law.  

2.08.260 Authority to impose administrative civil penalty. 

A.   Upon a determination by the building official that any person, firm, corporation or other entity however 
organized has violated a provision of this chapter or a rule adopted thereunder, the building official may 
issue a notice of civil violation and impose upon the violator and/or any other responsible person an 
administrative civil penalty as provided by subsections (A) through (K) of this section. For purposes of 
this subsection, a responsible person includes the violator, and if the violator is not the owner of the 
building or property at which the violation occurs, may include the owner as well. 

B.   Prior to issuing an order to correct a violation under this section, the building official may pursue 
reasonable attempts to secure voluntary correction. 

C.   Prior to issuing a notice of civil violation and imposing an administrative civil penalty under this section, 
the building official shall issue an order to correct a violation to one or more of the responsible persons. 
Except where the building official determines that the violation poses an immediate threat to health, 
safety, environment, or public welfare, the time for correction shall be 15 days. 

D.   Following the date or time by which the correction must be completed as required by an order to 
correct a violation, the building official shall determine whether such correction has been completed. If 
the required correction has not been completed by the date or time specified in the order, the building 
official may issue a notice of civil violation and impose an administrative civil penalty to each 
responsible person to whom an order to correct was issued. 

E.   Notwithstanding subsections (B) and (C) of this section, the building official may issue a notice of civil 
violation and impose an administrative civil penalty without having issued an order to correct violation or 
made attempts to secure voluntary correction where the building official determines that the violation 
was knowing or intentional or a repeat of a similar violation. 

F.   In imposing an administrative civil penalty authorized by this section, the building official shall consider: 

1.   The person’s past history in taking all feasible steps or procedures necessary or appropriate to 
correct the violation; 

2.   Any prior violations of statutes, rules, orders, and permits; 
3.   The gravity and magnitude of the violation; 
4.   Whether the violation was repeated or continuous; 
5.   Whether the cause of the violation was an unavoidable accident, negligence, or an intentional act; 
6.   The violator’s cooperativeness and efforts to correct the violation; 
7.   Any relevant rule of the building official. 

 
G.   Any notice of a civil violation that imposes an administrative civil penalty under this section shall either 

be served by personal service or shall be sent by registered or certified mail and by first class mail. Any 
such notice served by mail shall be deemed received for purposes of any time computations hereunder 
three days after the date mailed if to an address within this state, and seven days after the date mailed 
if to an address outside this state. Every notice shall include: 

103



ARTICLE TWO 

21 Revised 11/03/2021 

1. Reference to the particular code provision, ordinance number, or rule involved;
2. A statement of the matters asserted or charged;
3. A statement of the amount of the penalty or penalties imposed;
4. The date on which the order to correct was issued and time by which correction was to be made, or

if the penalty is imposed pursuant to subsection (E) of this section, a statement of the basis for
concluding that the violation was knowing, intentional, or repeated; and

5. A statement of the party’s right to appeal the civil penalty to the city manager; a description of the
process the party may use to appeal the civil penalty; and the deadline by which such an appeal
must be filed.

H. Any person, firm, corporation or other entity however organized that is issued a notice of civil penalty
may appeal the penalty to the County Operations Manager. The provisions of
CCBC 2.08.130.501.1 shall govern any requested appeal.

I. A civil penalty imposed hereunder shall become final upon expiration of the time for filing an appeal,
unless the responsible person appeals the penalty to the city manager pursuant to, and within the time
limits established by, CCBC 2.08.130.501.1.

J. Each day the violator fails to remedy the code violation shall constitute a separate violation.

K. The civil administrative penalty authorized by this section shall be in addition to:

1. Assessments or fees for any costs incurred by the county in remediation, cleanup, or abatement;
and

2. Any other actions authorized by law; provided, that the county shall not issue a citation to municipal
court for a violation of this chapter.

2.08.270 Unpaid penalties. 

A. Failure to pay an administrative penalty imposed pursuant to this code within 10 days after the penalty
becomes final shall constitute a violation of this code. Each day the penalty is not paid shall constitute a
separate violation. The building official is authorized to collect the penalty by any administrative or
judicial action or proceeding authorized by subsection (B) of this section, other provisions of this code,
or state statutes.

B. If an administrative civil penalty is imposed on a responsible person because of a violation of any
provision of this code resulting from prohibited use or activity on real property, and the penalty remains
unpaid 30 days after such penalty becomes final, the finance and human services director shall assess
the property the full amount of the unpaid fine and shall enter such an assessment as a lien in the
docket of county liens. At the time such an assessment is made, the finance and human services
director shall notify the responsible person that the penalty has been assessed against the real property
upon which the violation occurred and has been entered in the docket of county liens. The lien shall be
enforced in the same manner as all county liens. Interest shall commence from the date of entry of the
lien in the lien docket.

C. In addition to enforcement mechanisms authorized elsewhere in this code, failure to pay an
administrative civil penalty imposed pursuant to this code shall be grounds for withholding issuance of
requested permits or licenses, issuance of a stop work order, if applicable, or revocation or suspension
of any issued permits or certificates of occupancy.

104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

In the Matter of an Order Adopting a 

Social Media Policy  

) 

) 

ORDER NO. _______________________ 

WHEREAS, the purpose of a social media policy is to ensure that social media posts, comments, 

and accounts are managed in accordance with State and Federal Law; and 

WHEREAS, because some forms of social media constitute a limited public forum, and because 

all forms of social media are subject to Oregon Public Records Law and Oregon Government 

Ethics Law, it is reasonable to place restrictions on their use; and 

WHEREAS, the County does not currently have an adopted Social Media Policy. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT the Social Media Policy attached 

hereto and incorporated herein by reference is adopted and shall become effective immediately. 

DATED this 21st day of March, 2024. BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Approved as to Form: 

_______________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738 

Curry County Legal Counsel 

_________________________________________ 

Brad Alcorn, Chair 

_________________________________________ 

John Herzog, Vice Chair 

_________________________________________ 

Jay Trost, Commissioner 

112



 
 

 

Curry County Social Media Policy (2024)                    1  

 
CURRY COUNTY SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1. PURPOSE 

Curry County (“County”) has an overriding interest and expectation in deciding what is 

disseminated on behalf of the County to media representatives and on County authorized social 

media sites. This policy establishes the County’s requirements pertaining to the use of social 

media.  

 

To address the increased use of the Internet and the ways that county residents prefer to 

communicate and obtain information online, County departments may consider approving staff 

use of authorized social media tools. 

 

2. SCOPE 

This policy applies to all County employees and will be administered by the Director of County 

Operations’ Office. This policy is applicable to all county departments. 

 

3. DEFINITIONS 

 

“DCO” means the Director of County Operations.  

 

“Social media” is an umbrella term for various forms of communication consisting of user- 

created text, audio, video or other content published in a shared online environment, such as over 

the Internet or through mobile telephone networks. Different forms of social media generally have 

the common characteristic of allowing personal participation and feedback in a fast and informal 

manner. Social media is also typically open to vast multitudes of people to observe, copy, and use, 

often with few (if any) access restrictions. Examples of social media tools include but are not 

limited to, Social network sites, such as Facebook, Instagram, NextDoor, X (formerly Twitter) and 

Google Plus, business networking services such as LinkedIn, blogs, content-sharing services, such 

as YouTube and Flickr, internal forums/message boards, podcasts, and wikis such as Wikipedia. 

 

“Site” is an umbrella term to encompass a page, group or account utilized to disseminate social 

media information in accordance with this policy. 

 

 

113



 
 

 

Curry County Social Media Policy (2024)                    2  

4. POLICY 

The County encourages the appropriate use of authorized social media tools to further the mission, 

vision, and guiding principles of the County. The County will approve and address the use of 

County authorized social media tools as consistently as possible across the organization. The 

County’s website (http://www.co.curry.or.us) and any additional County authorized websites will 

remain the County's primary internet presence.  

 

In general, content posted to County authorized social media sites should refer users back to the 

County's official website or other County-authorized websites containing in-depth information, 

forms, documents or online services necessary to conduct business with Curry County. Whenever 

possible, content posted to County authorized social media sites will also be available on the 

County's main website. 

 

4.1 County Social Media Sites 

All County authorized social media sites used or established by departments will be subject 

to approval by the Director of County Operations or his/her designee. User accounts used 

to create official social media sites that are maintained by Curry County 

offices/departments shall be linked to Curry County email addresses and not personal email 

addresses. These user accounts should not be used for personal social media activity. All 

user accounts shall be linked to a County issued phone for multi-factor verification 

purposes when resetting passwords.  

 

4.2 Appropriate Use of Social Media Tools 

Appropriate County uses of social media tools fall generally into three categories; as 

channels for disseminating time-sensitive information as quickly as possible (for example: 

emergency information), as marketing/promotional channels which increase the County's 

ability to broadcast its messages to the widest possible audience, or as channels for 

engaging in dialogue with and gaining input from the public about various County projects 

and programs. 

 

4.3 Responsibility and Administration 

As is the case for the County website, departmental public information staff will be 

responsible for the content and upkeep of any County authorized social media sites their 

department may use or establish. All Curry County official social media sites are to be 

administered by a designated Curry County employee within the designated 

office/department, or an authorized individual approved by the DCO and authorized by the 

Board of Commissioners. Sites maintained by Curry County offices/departments shall 

make clear that they are maintained by the office/department and that they follow the Curry 

County Social Media Policy, and additionally shall utilize official County logos. 

 

 

114



 
 

 

Curry County Social Media Policy (2024)                    3  

4.4 Compliance with County and State Law 

a. All County authorized social media sites shall comply with all adopted 

County policies, procedures, and rules, as well as Oregon Government 

Ethics Laws (ORS Chapter 244) and State of Oregon Ethical Standards. 

 

b. County authorized social media sites are subject to Oregon Public Records 

Law (ORS Chapter 192). Any content maintained in a social media format 

that is related to County business, including a list of subscribers and posted 

communication, is considered public record. The department maintaining 

the site is responsible for responding to any public records request for 

records created or stored on social media. Content related to County 

business shall be maintained in an accessible format so that it can be 

produced in response to a request. Wherever possible, such sites shall 

clearly indicate that any content posted or submitted for posting is subject 

to public disclosure. Information shall be present that indicates that public 

disclosure requests must be directed to the Public Records Custodian. 

 

c. The Oregon Archives Division records retention schedules (OAR 166-150-

0005 to 166-150-0215) apply to social media formats and social media 

content. Unless otherwise addressed in a specific social media standards 

document, the department maintaining a County authorized social media 

site shall preserve records required to be maintained pursuant to the relevant 

records retention schedule for the required retention period on a County 

server in a format that, as much as practicable, preserves the integrity of the 

original record and is easily accessible. Appropriate retention formats shall 

be used for all forms of County authorized social media. 

 

4.5 Comment Policy 

Users and visitors to County authorized social media sites shall be notified that the intended 

purpose of the site is to serve as a mechanism for communication between County 

departments and members of the public. County authorized social media site articles, 

comments and other content containing any of the following are not allowed: 

 

a. Comments and articles not topically related to the particular social media 

article being commented upon. 

 

b. Comments in support of or opposition to political campaigns or ballot 

measures. 

 

c. Profane language or content. 

 

115



 
 

 

Curry County Social Media Policy (2024)                    4  

d. Rude, disparaging or discourteous comments directed at specific 

individuals, groups, or organizations. 

 

e. Content that promotes, fosters, or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of 

race, creed, color, age, religion, gender, marital status, status with regard to 

public assistance, national origin, physical or mental disability or sexual 

orientation. 

 

f. Inappropriate sexual content or links to inappropriate sexual content. 

 

g. Solicitations of commerce. 

 

h. Illegal conduct or encouragement of illegal activity, excepting any 

authorized undercover activities of law enforcement agencies. 

 

i. Information that may tend to compromise the safety or security of the public 

or public systems. 

 

j. Content that violates a legal ownership interest of any other party, including 

comments or content that includes a photograph or video of another person 

that has been posted without the person’s permission and consent. 

 

k. Comments or content that harass or advocate harassment of another person. 

 

l. Comments or content that poses or creates a privacy or security risk to 

another person. 

 

m. Comments or content that contain restricted or password-only access pages 

or hidden pages or images (not linked to or accessible from another 

accessible page). 

 

n. Comments or content that involve the transmission of “junk mail,” “chain 

letters,” or unsolicited mass mailing, instant messaging, “spimming” or 

“spamming.” 

 

o. Comments or content soliciting or designed to solicit passwords or personal 

identifying information for commercial purposes. 

 

p. Comments or content involving commercial activities and or sales without 

prior written consent of the County, including but not limited to contests, 

barter, sweepstakes, advertising, or pyramid schemes. 

116



 
 

 

Curry County Social Media Policy (2024)                    5  

 

These guidelines must be displayed to users or made available by hyperlink. Any content 

removed based on these guidelines must be retained, including the time, date and identity 

of the poster when available. 

 

The County reserves the right to restrict or remove any content that is deemed in violation 

of this Social Media Policy or any applicable law. County authorized social media sites 

that allow users to comment are limited public forums. Comments are subject to reasonable 

County rules and restrictions. County employees or agents acting as moderators are 

responsible for understanding and properly enforcing this Social Media Policy and any 

additional policies or regulations that apply to County authorized web accounts, sites, or 

pages. 

 

4.6 Performing Work-Related Social Media Content Management 

 

4.6.1. All new County authorized social media tools or accounts proposed for 

County, after approval from the Director of County Operations, must first 

be registered within a County department or office. 

 

a. The purpose of registration is to allow the County or a department 

or office of the County to immediately edit or remove content 

authored by the County, its employees or other users from all 

County authorized social media sites. Registration responsibilities 

will include maintenance of current login and password information 

for each social media tool or account used by the County. 

 

b. Department directors or their designees will be responsible for 

working together with the Human Resources Department to address 

violations of this policy, including the sharing of current user login 

and password information if necessary. 

 

4.6.2. The social media tools have been approved for use by the County include 

YouTube, X, Facebook, Blogs, and any other social media tools authorized 

pursuant to this Policy. 

 

4.6.3. County authorized social media is directly related to the County’s business 

concerns, employees are prohibited from expressing work-related 

complaints or criticisms on County authorized social media sites as per 

Personnel Rules and Regulation.  Employees are encouraged to submit 

work-related complaints directly to the appropriate department or their 

supervisor or in accordance with applicable County policies. Nothing 

117



 
 

 

Curry County Social Media Policy (2024)                    6  

contained herein shall in any way be construed or applied in a manner that 

interferes with an employee’s rights under the Public Employees Collective 

Bargaining Act. 

 

a. While the development of original content is desirable in many 

situations, County content authors are also encouraged to use 

existing text and language created and published to Curry County 

web pages whenever possible. This practice enhances the County’s 

ability to underscore key messages and draw social media users to 

more extensive content found on County web pages. 

 

b. Discussion topics initiated by content authors must have a clearly 

identified topic or theme to assist users in staying on-topic. 

 

c. Employees who connect to social media sites using County-owned 

equipment, who are officially authorized to speak on behalf of the 

County or a department, or who may be perceived as speaking on 

behalf of the County or a department, are subject to all County 

policies and requirements regarding prohibited or inappropriate 

behavior in the workplace. 

 

d. Employees shall not make comments or posts on social media sites 

on behalf of the County or a department unless specifically 

authorized to do so by the Director of County Operations or a 

department director or their designees. 

 

4.7 Employee use of Social Media on Personal Time 

The County respects employees’ ability to use social media as a medium of self-expression 

and conversation, and this policy does not restrict an employee’s ability to comment on 

matters of public concern as provided by law. However, social media sites have a 

significant communications potential, and can generally be accessed by anyone around the 

world indefinitely. Therefore, employees shall adhere to the following guidelines when 

communicating or posting content about County-related subjects on social media sites in 

their capacity as private citizens on personal time: 

 

a. Specify that the views expressed are the employees’ alone and do not 

necessarily represent the views of the County. 

 

b. Refrain from disclosing confidential or proprietary information of which the 

County may be a custodian including but not limited to private information 

about the County’s citizens, customers, clients, elected officials, employees, 

118



Curry County Social Media Policy (2024)        7  

representatives, business partners, service providers and vendors, and non-

public operational information and procedures; 

c. Refrain from making statements that hinder the effective performance of

County functions;

d. Refrain from making comments that threaten physical violence, harass,

bully, discriminate, or retaliate against the County’s customers, elected

officials, officers, employees, representatives, business partners, vendors,

or service providers;

e. Refrain from using social media to engage in abusive, defamatory, obscene,

violent, maliciously false or otherwise egregious conduct or statements

directed at or implicating the County, its citizens or customers, elected

officials, employees, representatives, business partners, service providers,

or vendors;

f. Refrain from using social media sites in a manner that may damage or

reflect discredit to the County’s good reputation by posting content created,

owned, associated with or held as a custodian by the County, including but

not limited to intellectual property, trademarks, logos, copyrighted material,

or images depicting County uniforms, vehicles, facilities, or other items

identified with the County or its business partners;

g. Refrain from linking a social media site to any of the County’s internal

websites or computer networks without County approval;

h. Ensure that personal social media use does not interfere with assigned work

responsibilities;

i. Remember that, in some cases, content about the conduct of County

business published by employees on personal time may be subject to

disclosure under Oregon Public Records Law;

j. Refrain from establishing websites or other social media sites of any type

that purport to represent the interests and views of the Curry County

organization or any of its departments unless the creation of such sites has

been specifically authorized by their department director, the Director of

County Operations or their designees; and

k. Refrain from using any County email address to register on social networks,

119



Curry County Social Media Policy (2024)        8  

blogs or other online tools utilized for personal use. 

5. POLICY ENFORCEMENT AND VIOLATION

Violations of this Policy, including postings, comments or activities involving social media made

on personal time that violate the County’s Personnel Rules and Regulations or this Policy may

subject employees to disciplinary action up to and including termination from employment with

Curry County. The Director of County Operations or the IT Director may, in their sole discretion,

remove any unsuitable content from social media sites and revoke a social media administrator’s

access for violations of this Policy.

6. INTERPRETATION AND IMPLEMENTATION

Any questions relative to the intent or application of this procedure should be directed to the DCO,

who is delegated the responsibility to interpret and implement this procedure.

7. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT BY DEPARTMENT HEADS

Upon receipt of this Policy, each Department Head shall sign below where indicated, and a copy

of the signed acknowledgement shall be placed in the Department Head’s personnel file.

The Department Head’s signature below serves as an attestation that they have read, 

understand, and agree to the provisions outlined in the Policy. In the event the Department 

receives approval from the Director of County Operations to proceed with social media 

programming, they agree to abide by all the provisions contained there, as well as the Terms 

of Use for each social media application the Department uses.  

_________________________________________ ______________________________ 

Signature Date 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Name and Title 

120




